
ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

PLANNING BOARD 
 
 

Thursday, 18 September 2014 
Start Time  9.00 a.m.  

At Town Hall, Moorgate Street, Rotherham.  S60  2TH 
 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any items which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest (Page 1) 
  
 (A form is attached and spares will be available at the meeting) 
  
 
5. Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Regulatory Board held on 28th August, 

2014 (Pages 2 - 5) 
  

 
6. Deferments/Site Visits (information attached) (Pages 6 - 7) 
  

 
7. Development Proposals (Pages 8 - 55) 
  

 
8. Report of the Director of Planning and Regeneration Service (Pages 56 - 65) 
  

 
9. Updates  
  

 
10. Date of next meeting - Thursday, 9th October, 2014  
  

 

 



 
 

ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD 
 

MEMBERS’ DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

 
Your Name (Please PRINT):- 
 
 
Meeting at which declaration made:- 
 
 
Item/Application in which you have 
an interest:- 
 
 
Date of Meeting:- 
 
 
Time Meeting Started:- 
 
 

Please tick ( √ ) which type of interest you have in the appropriate box below:- 
 

 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary      
 
 
 
 

2. Personal  
 
 
 
Please give your reason(s) for you Declaring an Interest:- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N.B.  It is up to a Member to determine whether to make a Declaration.  However, if you should 
require any assistance, please consult the Legal Adviser or Democratic Services Officer prior to the 
meeting. 
 
 
 

     Signed:- …………………………..…………………………. 

 

(When you have completed this form, please hand it to the Democratic Services Officer.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

(Please continue overleaf if necessary) 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



PLANNING BOARD - 28/08/14 1T 

 

PLANNING BOARD 
Thursday, 28th August, 2014 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Atkin (in the Chair); Councillors Astbury, Godfrey, Kaye, 
Middleton, Pitchley, Roche, Roddison, Russell, Smith, Turner, Tweed and M. Vines. 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Whysall.  
 
T22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest made at this meeting. 

 
T23. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING REGULATORY 

BOARD HELD ON 7TH AUGUST, 2014  
 

 Resolved:- That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning 
Regulatory Board held on Thursday 7th August, 2014, be approved as a 
correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 

T24. DEFERMENTS/SITE VISITS  
 

 There were no site visits nor deferments recommended. 
 

T25. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS  
 

 Resolved:- (1) That, on the development proposals now considered the 
requisite notices be issued and be made available on the Council’s 
website and that the time limits specified in Sections 91 and 92 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 apply. 
 
In accordance with the right to speak procedure, the following persons 
attended the meeting and spoke about the applications listed below:- 
 

Demolition of an existing unlisted pair of semi-detached residential 
properties within Letwell Conservation Area and erection of 1 No. 
dwelling at land at 15-17 Gildingwells Road, Letwell for Mr and Mrs 
P Smith (RB2014/0333) 
 
Mrs. S. Smith (Applicant) 

 
Replacement of existing raised patio and wall with new raised patio 
and wall at 2 Blenheim Close Bramley for Mr and Mrs J Dallinson 
(RB2014/0756) 
 
Mr. and Mrs. J Dallinson (Applicants – statement read out on their 
behalf) 
 
Retrospective application for change of use of part of dwelling to day 
nursery for 14 No. places (use class D1), Arborlawn, Carlisle Street, 

Page 2 Agenda Item 5



2T PLANNING BOARD - 28/08/14 

 

Kilnhurst for Mr and Mrs P Young (RB2014/0911) 
 

Mrs Young (Applicant) 
Mr. M. Rix (Objector) 
Mrs. Jackson (Objector) 
Mrs. Harris (Objector) 

 Mr. Harris (Objector) 
  

Erection of 39 No. retirement living (category II type 
accommodation), including provision of communal landscaping 
areas, erection of bin / electric scooter store and sub-station and 
associated external car parking at land at Companions Close, 
Wickersley for McCarthy and Stone Retirement Lifestyles Ltd. 
(RB2014/0643) 
 
Mrs. H Fox (on behalf of the Applicant) 
 
Sub-division of building to create a hot-food takeaway (use class A5) 
in new unit, external alterations including installation of ventilation / 
extraction equipment, erection of bin store and formation of 4 No. 
parking spaces at Against the Grain, Unit 2, Greasbrough Street, 
Masbrough for Peter and Paul Eyre (RB2014/0927) 
 
Mr. G Sutton (on behalf of the Applicant) 
 
Application under Section 73 for a minor material amendment to vary 
conditions 01-06, 08, 12-15, 18, 19, 25, 33, 35, 43, 44, 47 and 48 
imposed by RB2012/1428 (Outline application for Waverley New 
Community) including alterations to the Design and Access 
Statement and Parameter Plans, the Surface Water Strategy, and 
with an increase in the trigger points for the submission of an 
alternative transport scheme to the Bus Rapid Transit and for 
improvements to the B6066 High Field Spring/Brunel Way at 
Waverley New Community Site, High Field Spring, Catcliffe for 
Harworth Estates Ltd (RB2014/0775) 
 
Mr C Martin (on behalf of the Applicant) 

 
(2) That applications RB2014/0012, RB2014/0333, RB2014/0756, 
RB2014/0835 and RB2014/0927 be granted for the reasons adopted by 
Members at the meeting and subject to the relevant conditions listed in 
the submitted report. 
 
(3) (a) That, with regard to application RB2014/0643, the Council shall 
enter into an agreement with the developer under Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the purposes of securing a 
commuted sum of £110,000 towards off-site provision of affordable 
housing, with an additional overage payment applicable for any rises in 
sales values from today’s date, calculated on an index linked rise in the 
house market as calculated by either the Halifax or the Nationwide 

Page 3



PLANNING BOARD - 28/08/14 3T 

 

Building Society and will be payable at the end of the financial years 
2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18;  
 
(3)(b) consequent upon the satisfactory signing of such an agreement, the 
Council resolves to grant permission for the proposed development 
subject to the conditions set out in the report now submitted. 
 
(4) That application RB2014/0698 be granted for the reasons adopted by 
Members at the meeting and subject to the relevant conditions listed in 
the submitted report and subject to the following amended conditions:- 
 
02 
To vary the approved plan to allow an updated elevation detail as shown 
on the 3D visuals. 
 
15, 16 and 20 
To include the wording “Prior to the commencement of each phase of the 
development” to allow the development to be commenced in phases. 
 
(5)(a) That, with regard to application RB2014/0775, the Council shall 
enter into an agreement with the developer under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 for the purposes of securing the same 
obligations as was previously secured through planning permission 
RB2012/1428.; and 
 
(5)(b) consequent upon the satisfactory signing of such an agreement the 
Council resolves to grant permission for the proposed development subject 
to the conditions set out in the report now submitted. 
 
(6) That the Planning Board declares that it is not in favour of application 
RB2014/0911 on the grounds that the proposed development:- 
 
- constitutes inappropriate business-use development in a residential 
area;  
- will generate noise from the premises and its adjoining garden area 
which will cause a nuisance within the immediate environment resulting in 
a loss of amenity (quiet enjoyment of their homes) for local residents; and 
- will result in disturbance to local residents caused by vehicles parking 
near to the premises when parents/carers bring their children to the 
nursery and collect them at various times of the day, 
 
but the Director of Planning, Regeneration and Culture, in consultation 
with the Chairman of the Planning Board, be authorised to determine the 
reasons for refusal of this application. 
 

T26. UPDATES  
 

 (1) Planning Board tour of completed developments – Members 
discussed the issues arising from the visits of inspection which had taken 
place on 21st August, 2014. 

Page 4



4T PLANNING BOARD - 28/08/14 

 

 
(2) Department for Communities and Local Government - consultation 
about the proposed regulatory changes to the neighbourhood planning 
system introduced via the Localism Act 2011 – it was noted that, in view 
of the very short timescale for responses to this consultation document, 
this Council’s response is to be considered by the Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Highways and Street Scene Services and the Planning Board 
will be notified of that response in due course. 
 

 

Page 5



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD 

 

 

DEFERMENTS 

 

 

• Planning applications which have been reported on the Planning Board 
Agenda should not be deferred on request without justification. 

 

• Justification for deferring a decision can arise from a number of matters:- 
 

(a) Members may require further information which has not previously 
been obtained. 

 
(b) Members may require further discussions between the applicant and 

officers over a specific issue. 
 

(c) Members may require a visit to the site. 
 

(d) Members may delegate to the Director of Service the detailed 
wording of a reason for refusal or a planning condition. 

 
(e) Members may wish to ensure that an applicant or objector is not 

denied the opportunity to exercise the “Right to Speak”. 
 

• Any requests for deferments from Members must be justified in Planning 
terms and approved by the Board.  The reason for deferring must be 
clearly set out by the Proposing Member and be recorded in the minutes. 

 

• The Director of Planning and Transportation Service or the applicant may 
also request the deferment of an application, which must be justified in 
planning terms and approved by the Board. 

Page 6 Agenda Item 6



SITE VISITS 
 

• Requests for the Planning Board to visit a site come from a variety of sources:- 
the applicant, objectors, the Parish Council, local Ward Councillors, Board 
Members or sometimes from the Director of Planning and Transportation 
Service. 

 

• Site visits should only be considered necessary if the impact of the proposed 
development is difficult to assess from the application plans and supporting 
information provided with the officer’s written report; if the application is 
particularly contentious or the application has an element that cannot be 
adequately expressed in writing by the applicant or objector.  Site visits can 
cause delay and additional cost to a project or development and should only be 
used where fully justified. 

 

• The reasons why a site visit is called should be specified by the Board and 
recorded. 

 

• Normally the visit will be programmed by Democratic Services to precede the 
next Board meeting (i.e. within two weeks) to minimise any delay. 

 

• The visit will normally comprise of the Members of the Planning Board and 
appropriate officers.  Ward Members are notified of visits within their Ward. 

 

• All applicants and representees are notified of the date and approximate time of 
the visit.  As far as possible Members should keep to the schedule of visits set 
out by Committee Services on the Board meeting agenda. 

 

• Normally the visit will be accessed by coach.  Members and officers are 
required to observe the site directly when making the visit, although the item will 
be occasioned by a short presentation by officers as an introduction on the 
coach before alighting.  Ward Members present will be invited on the coach for 
this introduction. 

 

• On site the Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be made known to the applicant 
and representees and will lead the visit allowing questions, views and 
discussions.  The applicant and representees are free to make points on the 
nature and impact of the development proposal as well as factual matters in 
relation to the site, however, the purpose of the visit is not to promote a full 
debate of all the issues involved with the application.  Members must conduct 
the visit as a group in a manner which is open, impartial and equitable and 
should endeavour to ensure that they hear all points made by the applicant and 
representees. 

 

• At the conclusion of the visit the Chairman should explain the next steps.  The 
applicant and representees should be informed that the decision on the 
application will normally be made later that day at the Board meeting subject to 
the normal procedure and that they will be welcome to attend and exercise their 
“Right to Speak” as appropriate. 

Page 7



REPORT TO THE PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD 
TO BE HELD ON THE 18 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 
The following applications are submitted for your consideration. It is 
recommended that decisions under the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 be recorded as indicated. 
 
 
 
 
INDEX PAGE 
 
RB2014/0903 
Details of layout, landscaping, scale and appearance of Unit 2 
(reserved by outline RB2013/1365) at Nikken Brunel Way 
Catcliffe for Nikken Kosakusho Europe Ltd 

 
Page 9 

 

RB2014/0915 
Alterations to front elevation and improvement to parking area 
at Cranworth Hotel Fitzwilliam Road Eastwood for Punch 
Taverns 

 
Page 18 

 

RB2014/0931 
Erection of two/three storey building for use as workshops 
(use class B2 light industry) and offices (use class B1(a) with 
associated landscaping and parking at AMP Technology 
Centre, Advanced Manufacturing Park Brunel Way Catcliffe 
for Homes and Communities Agency 

 
Page 26 

 

RB2014/1038 
Application to vary Condition 02 (approved plans) imposed by 
RB2013/0425 (erection of 2 No. wind turbines and associated 
cabinets) at Norwood Lock Mansfield Road Wales for Navarda 
Wind Farm Ltd 

 
Page 46 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 Agenda Item 7



Application Number RB2014/0903 

Proposal and 
Location 

Details of layout, landscaping, scale and appearance of Unit 2 
(reserved by outline RB2013/1365) land off Brunel Way Catcliffe, 
S60 5WG 

Recommendation Grant subject to conditions  

 

 
 
Site Description & Location 
 
The application site forms part of the Phase 2 development at the Advanced 
Manufacturing Park (AMP) at Catcliffe and is approximately 0.7 hectares in 
size.  The site is accessed off a cul-de-sac form Brunel Way, for which 
planning permission has been granted.  Planning permission has been 
granted for two units to the rear of the plot that are currently under 
construction.  There is a vacant development plot to the north of the site with 
a strip of tree planting to the north west between the site and the Sheffield 
Parkway. 
 
The site has previously been prepared as a development plateau, and is flat 
with some shrubs and grass.   
 
Background 
 
There are a number of previous applications relating to this site, those 
relevant to this application are listed below –  
 
RB2003/0046 

Page 9



Outline application for development of an advanced manufacturing park 
including business uses in Class B1 & B2 with related infrastructure and 
landscaping. - Granted conditionally, subject to a legal agreement 06/04/2005 
 
RB2012/1416 
Engineering works to form level development plateau - Granted Conditionally 
17/12/2012 
 
RB2013/1039 
Formation of access road - Granted conditionally 26/09/2013 
 
RB2013/1365 
Outline application to erect 3 No. Units (use classes B1 (b & c), B2 & B8) with 
all matters reserved – Granted Conditionally 13/12/2013 
 
RB2013/1568 
Reserved matters application for units 3 and 4 with details of layout, 
landscaping, scale and appearance – Granted 31/01/14 
 
EIA Screening Opinion 
 
A screening opinion was carried out to determine whether an Environmental 
Impact Assessment should accompany the application. The proposed 
development falls within the description contained in paragraphs 10 (a) of The 
Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011 and meets the criteria set out in column 2 of the table, i.e. that the area 
of the development exceeds 0.5 hectares.  However, taking account of the 
criteria set out in Schedule 3, the opinion has been reached that the 
development would not be likely to have significant effects on the environment 
by virtue of factors such as its nature, size or location and therefore an 
Environmental Impact Assessment was not required to accompany the 
application. 
 

Proposal 
 
The planning application seeks reserved matters approval for the layout, 
landscaping, scale and appearance of unit 2 of the R-evolution development 
approved in outline under permission reference RB2013/1365.  Members may 
recall that details of units 3 and 4 have previously been approved by 
application RB2013/1568 in January 2014 and these units are currently under 
construction. 
 
The floorspace proposed within this reserved matters application is 
approximately 2,275 sqm, similar in scale to the previous two buildings.  In 
accordance with the outline consent, the unit is proposed to be used within B1 
(b & c) research and development..   
 
The scheme is proposed to be constructed in two phases, Phase 1 at the front 
of the site being developed firstly, with Phase 2 being constructed to the rear 
of the site (and physically attached) at a later date. 

Page 10



 
Phase 1 is proposed to be approximately 1,387sqm, 39m long and 37m wide 
with Phase 2 being 888sqm resulting in the building being 63m long and 37m 
wide; the building is proposed to be 8.45m high. 
 
The design of the building is proposed to be “striking” and be welcoming for 
visitors.  The proposed materials are grey flat panel cladding systems to the 
front elevation with metal profiled cladding systems to all other elevations.  
The front of the building has been designed on a curve, with the majority 
being glazed, with a small amount of wooden cladding on recessed areas. 
 
The completed unit provides 43 car parking spaces for users including 2 
disabled spaces as well as provision for cycle parking for 8 bikes. 
 
The application has been supported by the following documents –  
 
Design and Access Statement – This outlines that the proposed design and 
materials of the building will relate to the other sites located in close proximity.  
It states that the site is accessible to all modes of transport and incorporates a 
number of green objectives to achieve a BREEAM rating of Very Good. 
 
Biodiversity and Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy – This has been 
submitted to show that the development will accord to the wider biodiversity 
plan for the site.   
 

 

Development Plan Allocation and Policy 
 
On the 9th July 2014, the Council's Cabinet recommended that the Council 
adopt its Core Strategy. A report regarding adoption is to be considered at the 
full Council meeting of 10 September and upon approval the Core Strategy 
will be adopted and published. The weight to be given to the Core Strategy 
policies in the determination of planning applications is therefore significant as 
the Council considers the Core Strategy proposals satisfy the relevant 
requirements under paragraph 215 of the NPPF. 
 
The site is allocated for Industrial and Business Use within the adopted 
Rotherham Unitary Development Plan.  Therefore the following policies are 
relevant to the determination of the planning application –  
 
 
UDP Policies 
 
EC1 ‘Existing Industrial and Business Areas’  
EC3.1 ‘Land Identified for Industrial and Business Uses’  
 
Core Strategy Policies 
 
CS9 Transforming Rotherham’s Economy 
CS21 ‘Landscape’  

Page 11



CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’  
CS14 ‘Accessible Places and Managing Demand for Travel’  
 
  
Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: The NPPF came into effect on March 
27th 2012 and replaced all previous Government Planning Policy Guidance 
(PPGs) and most of the Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) that existed. It 
states that “Development that is sustainable should go ahead, without delay – 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development that is the basis for every 
plan, and every decision.”  
 
The NPPF notes that for 12 months from the day of publication, decision-
takers may continue to give full weight to relevant policies adopted since 2004 

even if there is a limited degree of conflict with this Framework. The 
Rotherham Unitary Development Plan was adopted prior to this in June 1999. 
Under such circumstances the NPPF states that “due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency 
with this framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).”  
 
The Unitary Development Plan policies referred to above are consistent with 
the NPPF and have been given due weight in the determination of this 
application. 
 

 

Publicity 
 
The application was advertised in the press and on site.  No representations 
have been received. 
 
 
Consultations 
 
Transportation Unit – No objections subject to conditions 
 
Streetpride (Landscapes) - No objections 
 
Streetpride (Drainage) – No objections 
 
Streetpride (Ecology) – No objections  
 
Environmental Health (contamination) – No objections 
 
Yorkshire Water – No objections 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Appraisal 
 
Where an application is made to a local planning authority for planning 
permission…..In dealing with such an application the authority shall have 
regard to - 
  
(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application,  
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and  
(c) any other material considerations. - S. 70 (2) TCPA ‘90. 
 
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise - S.38 (6) PCPA 2004. 
 
The principle of development was established under outline permission 
RB2013/1365 in December 2013, and the proposed use of the building for 
research and development purposes is considered to be appropriate. 
 
The main considerations of this application therefore relate to the following: 
 

• Scale, Layout, Design and Appearance 

• Landscape and Ecology 
 
Scale, Layout, Design and Appearance 
 
CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’ states that: “Proposals for development should 
respect and enhance the distinctive features of Rotherham. They should 
develop a strong sense of place with a high quality of public realm and well 
designed buildings within a clear framework of routes and spaces. 
Development proposals should be responsive to their context and be visually 
attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping. 
 
Design should take all opportunities to improve the character and quality of an 
area and the way it functions.” 
 
This is further emphasised in Paragraph 56 of the NPPF which states that 
“The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 
environment.  Good Design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making 
places better for people”. 
 
Having regard to the layout and form of the proposed building, it is situated in 
a position that provides a strong elevation fronting the road whist allowing a 
sufficient area for the provision of landscaping, parking and servicing. 
Externally, the proposed buildings reflect the appearance/quality of existing 
buildings within the wider AMP site, and the design of the building is 
considered appropriate in this location. 
 

Page 13



The whole scheme is proposed to be constructed in two phases.  The first 
phase will face towards Brunel Way, and an area of land at the rear of the site 
will be planted with wildflowers.  26 parking spaces will be provided for the 
first phase with a further 17 parking spaces being provided when the second 
phase is built out.  This phased approach is considered acceptable and will 
not have any adverse impact on the visual amenity of the area. 
 
In summary, and taking into account of the surrounding buildings, it is 
considered that the proposed development is appropriate for its location and 
would not have a materially detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the 
locality in line with Core Strategy Policy CS28 and Paragraph 56 of the NPPF. 
 
Access to the site and the impact of the development on the local highway 
network were considered as part of the outline application and subsequently 
considered to be acceptable.  Therefore this current application deals solely 
with the detail of the proposals which includes the location and quantum of car 
and cycle parking and the implementation of travel plan measures. 
 
In this regard the proposed level of car parking is consistent with the 
provisions of the Councils Maximum Car Parking Standards, approved in 
June 2011, and is therefore considered to be acceptable.  The site is also 
accessible by public transport and is accessible for pedestrians and cyclists. 
The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Core Strategy Policy 
CS14 which promotes the location of new development in locations that are 
highly accessible which are well served by a variety of modes of travel; and 
through supporting high density development near to public transport 
interchanges. 
 
Landscape and Ecology 
 
Core Strategy Policy CS21 ‘Landscape’ states that new development will be 
required to safeguard and enhance the quality, character, distinctiveness and 
amenity value of the boroughs landscape. 
 
Paragraph 109 of the NPPF states that: “The planning system should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by amongst 
other things, minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in 
biodiversity where possible, contributing to the Government’s commitments to 
halt the overall decline in biodiversity, including by establishing coherent 
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures” 
 
 
The application is accompanied by a landscaping layout scheme which 
provides for planting to the front of the unit. The proposed quantum and 
location of planting has been considered by the Council’s Landscape Section 
as well as the Ecologist.  The application was supported by a Biodiversity 
Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy, which is considered to incorporate all 
necessary measures, and is therefore a positive and welcome provision. 
 

Page 14



Having regard to the above, it is considered that subject to the imposition of 
conditions the proposed landscaping scheme and net ecological gain is 
acceptable and in accordance with paragraph 109 of the NPPF and Core 
Strategy Policy CS21 ‘Landscape.’  
 
Conclusion 
 
The principle of development was established under the outline permission 
ref. RB2013/1365 granted in December 2013.  The scale, appearance and 
external appearance of the proposed development is considered to be 
appropriate for its location and would not have a materially detrimental impact 
on the visual amenity of the locality in line with Core Strategy Policy CS28 and 
paragraph 56 of the NPPF.  The level of car and cycle parking provision 
accords with the Councils maximum car parking standards and cycle 
provision guidance and is therefore considered acceptable, and the site is 
considered to be located in a sustainable location in accordance with Core 
Strategy Policy CS14. 
 
Having regard to landscaping and ecology, the landscape scheme and 
biodiversity mitigation and enhancement strategy are considered acceptable 
and appropriate for the plots, and are considered to be in accordance with 
paragraph 109 of the NPPF and Core Strategy Policy CS21. 
 
The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to the 
following conditions.  
 
Conditions 
 
 
01 
The permission hereby granted shall relate to the area shown outlined in red 
on the approved site plan and the development shall only take place in 
accordance with the submitted details and specifications as shown on the 
approved plans (as set out below) except as shall be otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

• Site Location Plan – Drawing Reference Number – NIK BBA Z0 00 DR 
A 01007 D5 Rev P9 – received 24-06-2014 

• Proposed Phase 2 Site Plan – drawing Number NIK BBA Z0 00 DR A 
01009 D5 Rev P8 – received 24-06-2014 

• GA Elevations – Phase 1 – Drawing Number – NIK BBA 00 ZZ DR A 
03001 D5 Rev P5 – received 24-06-2014 

• GA Elevations – Phase 2 – Drawing Number NIK BBA 00 ZZ DR A 
03002 D5 Rev P1 – received 24-06-2014 

• Proposed Phase 1 Site Plan – Drawing Number – NIK BBA Z0 00 DR 
A 01008 D5 Rev P9 – received 24-06-2014 

• GA Ground Floor Plan – Phase 1 – Drawing Number NIK BBA Z0 GF 
DR A 02011 D5 Rev P15 – received 24-06-2014 

• GA Ground Floor Plan – Phase 2 – Drawing Number – NIK BBA Z0 GF 
DR A 02014 D5 Rev P2 – received 24-06-2014 

Page 15



• GA First Floor Plan – Phase 1 – Drawing Number KIK BBA Z0 M0 DR 
A 02013 D5 Rev P5 – received 24-06-2014 

• GA First Floor Plan – Phase 2 – Drawing Number NIK BBA Z0 M0 DR 
A 02015 D5 Rev P1 – received 24-0602014 

• GA Roof Plan – Phase 1 – Drawing Number – NIK BBA Z0 RF DR A 
02012 D5 Rev P3 – received 24-06-2014 

• GA Roof Plan – Phase 2 – Drawing Number NIK BBA Z0 RF DR A 
02016 D5 Rev P1 – received 24-06-2014 

• Proposed Drainage Layout – Drawing Number – 35207 10 rev – 
Received 24-06-2014 

• Proposed Landscape Plan – Phase 1 – Drawing Number  NIK BBA Z0 
00 DR A 010011 D5 Rev P2  

• Proposed Landscape Plan – Phase 2 – Drawing Number  NIK BBA Z0 
00 DR A 010011 D5 Rev P2  

 
Reason 
To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
02 
Before each phase of the development is brought into use, that part of the site 
to be used by vehicles shall be constructed with either; 
 a/ a permeable surface and associated water retention/collection 
drainage, or;  
 b/ an impermeable surface with water collected and taken to a 
separately constructed water retention/discharge system within the site. 
The area shall thereafter be maintained in a working condition. 
 
Reason  
To ensure that surface water can adequately be drained and to encourage 
drivers to make use of the parking spaces and to ensure that the use of the 
land for this purpose will not give rise to the deposit of mud and other 
extraneous material on the public highway in the interests of the adequate 
drainage of the site and road safety. 
 
03 
Before each phase of the development is brought into use the car parking 
area shown on the approved plan for each phase shall be provided, marked 
out and thereafter maintained for car parking. 
 
Reason 
To ensure the provision of satisfactory garage/parking space and avoid the 
necessity for the parking of vehicles on the highway in the interests of road 
safety. 
 
04Landscaping of the site as shown on the approved plans (Phase 1 – 
Drawing Number  NIK BBA Z0 00 DR A 010011 D5 Rev P2  and Phase 2 – 
Drawing Number  NIK BBA Z0 00 DR A 010011 D5 Rev P2 ) shall be carried 
out during the first available planting season after commencement of the 
development of each phase.  Any plants or trees which within a period of 5 
years from completion of planting die, are removed or damaged, or that fail to 

Page 16



thrive shall be replaced within the next planting season.  Assessment of 
requirements for replacement planting shall be carried out on an annual basis 
in September of each year and any defective work or materials discovered 
shall be rectified before 31st December of that year.  
 
Reason 
To ensure that there is a well laid out scheme of healthy trees and shrubs in 
the interests of amenity and in accordance with UDP Policies ENV3 ‘Borough 
Landscape’, ENV3.2 ‘Minimising the Impact of Development’ and ENV3.4 
‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’ Core Strategy Policy CS21 Landscape. 
 
05 
The permission hereby granted shall be implemented in accordance with the 
details included within the Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Strategy 
prepared by AES-LTD dated April 2014. 
 
Reason 
In the interest of biodiversity at the site in accordance with the NPPF. 
 
 

POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT  
 
The applicant and the Local Planning Authority engaged in pre application 
discussions to consider the development before the submission of the 
planning application.  The application was submitted on the basis of these 
discussions, or was amended to accord with them.  It was considered to be in 
accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Application Number RB2014/0915 
 

Proposal and 
Location 

Alterations to front elevation and improvement to parking area at 
Cranworth Hotel, Fitzwilliam Road, Eastwood, S65 1QB 
 

Recommendation Grant subject to conditions  

 
 

 
 
Site Description & Location 
 
The application site is occupied by ‘The Cranworth Hotel’ that is located on 
the southern side of Fitzwilliam Road at the junction with Cranworth Road in 
the Eastwood area of the Borough. The site is surrounded by various uses 
with residential properties adjacent to the side and rear of the site and 
commercial / retail units on the opposite side of Fitzwilliam Road. 
 
The public house is two-storey in height and is of mock-tudor style where the 
external appearance of the building at first floor level is half-timbered with 
render and red brickwork on the ground floor level. The public house is set 
back from the public highway with a car park and external seating area to the 
front and side of the building. The vehicular access to the site is via Cranworth 
Road with a dwarf stone wall along the site boundary with Fitzwilliam Road.  
 
 
 
 

Page 18



Background 
 
There are a number of previous applications relating to this site:  
 
RB1987/0999 – Extension to improve toilet facilities to public house – Granted 
 
RB1992/1102 – Display of several illuminated signs – Granted 
 
RB1999/1122 – Display of an illuminated free-standing advertisement display 
unit – Refused 
 
RB2008/0844 – Display of an illuminated free standing double sided 
advertisement unit – Granted conditionally 
 
Proposal 
 
This proposal seeks planning permission for some alterations to the front 
elevation of the building and the car parking area. The details of the proposal 
have been revised during the determination period. 
 
The proposed alteration to the building is solely to the front elevation and is on 
the ground floor only. It is proposed to retain the existing bay windows 
including the glazing. The existing entrance would be replaced with a glazing 
panel and a new double sliding door entrance will be created between the 
existing bay windows. It is also proposed to have an additional window to the 
side of the existing entrance which will be of similar width and height as the 
bay windows. All new glazing is to be aluminium framed and powder coated in 
the colour of dark grey (BS18B25). 
 
The proposed alteration to the car parking area would clearly define 12 car 
parking spaces, 2 disabled spaces and 2 cycle stands.  
 
It is also noted from the site plan that soft landscaping is proposed to the 
perimeter of the site. 
 
The application has been supported by a Design and Access Statement which 
outlines that the purpose of the proposal is to ensure the public house is 
compliant with the Disability Discrimination Act. 
 

Development Plan Allocation and Policy 
 
On the 9th July 2014, the Council's Cabinet recommended that the Council 
adopt its Core Strategy. A report regarding adoption is to be considered at the 
full Council meeting of 10 September and upon approval the Core Strategy 
will be adopted and published. The weight to be given to the Core Strategy 
policies in the determination of planning applications is therefore significant as 
the Council considers the Core Strategy proposals satisfy the relevant 
requirements under paragraph 215 of the NPPF. 
 

Page 19



The site is allocated for residential use within the adopted Rotherham Unitary 
Development Plan.  Therefore the following policies are relevant to the 
determination of the planning application –  
 
Core Strategy Policy 
CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’  
CS21 ‘Landscaping’ 
UDP Policy 
T8 ‘Access’ 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: The NPPF came into effect on March 
27th 2012 and replaced all previous Government Planning Policy Guidance 
(PPGs) and most of the Planning Policy Statements (PPS’s) that existed. It 
states that “Development that is sustainable should go ahead, without delay – 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development that is the basis for every 
plan, and every decision.  
 
The NPPF notes that for 12 months from the day of publication, decision-
takers may continue to give full weight to relevant policies adopted since 2004 
even if there is a limited degree of conflict with this Framework. The 
Rotherham Unitary Development Plan was adopted prior to this in June 1999. 
Under such circumstances the NPPF states that “due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency 
with this framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).”  
 
The Unitary Development Plan allocation and Core Strategy policy referred to 
above are consistent with the NPPF and have been given due weight in the 
determination of this application. 
 

Publicity 
 
Neighbouring properties were notified by letter and a site notice was displayed 
at the site.  
 
The revised proposals were also re-advertised in the same manner. 
  
Two representations and a petition with approximately 1150 signatures have 
been received.  The objections relate to: 
 
The new proposal is going to result in a change of use of the public house to a 
convenience store (Tesco Express) and would result in:  

 
- the closure of the only pub left in the Eastwood area 
- increase traffic and danger for school children crossing Cranworth Road 
- affect local small businesses and the local community do not need more 

supermarket 

Page 20



- the landlady of the Cranworth Hotel would lose her job and her home 
which would have significant impact to her family 

- the building has its own history with it being used as an air raid shelter 
before it became a public house 

- the application is  misleading as the applicant is submitting the application 
on behalf of Tesco 

 
Both bay windows have the crest on them with the front door having an old 
sign (The British Institute of Inn keeping) above the door. The external 
appearance of the building should not be allowed to change given the historic 
feature on the building. 
 
Three right to speak requests have been received, one from the landlady of 
Cranworth Hotel and two from the business owners on Fitzwilliam Road. 
 
Consultations 
 
Streetpride (Highways & Transportation): No objection subject to conditions 
 
Neighbourhood (Environmental Health): No objection 
 
Appraisal 
 
Where an application is made to a local planning authority for planning 
permission…..In dealing with such an application the authority shall have 
regard to - 
  
(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application,  
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and  
(c) any other material considerations. - S. 70 (2) TCPA ‘90. 
 
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise - S.38 (6) PCPA 2004. 
 
The main considerations of this application therefore relate to the following: 

• Principle of Development 

• Visual impact of the development 

• Transportation Issues 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The planning application has been submitted with the intention of ensuring 
that the building is in compliance with the Disability & Discrimination Act and a 
proposed floor plan has been submitted which identifies that the building 
would remain as a public house. 
 

Page 21



It should be noted however, that under Part 3, Class A of the 1995 General 
Permitted Development Order (as amended), development consisting of the 
change of use of a building from a Public House (Class A4) to a shop (Class 
A1) would be permitted development and would not require planning 
permission. 
 
Given that the principle of the use of the building as a shop instead of as a 
public house is established by current planning legislation, the Local Planning 
Authority cannot consider the acceptability of the principle of the potential 
change of use of the Cranworth Hotel to a shop and what implications this 
would have on highway safety, local businesses or the public house business 
itself. 
 
Although the application site is allocated for residential use in the adopted 
UDP, it has been used as a public house for many years and as the proposed 
development would only affect the external appearance of the building and 
the layout of the car park, it is therefore considered that the proposal is 
acceptable in principle. 
 
UDP Policy T8 ‘Access’ states that ‘The Council will seek to meet the access 
needs of people with mobility and sensory handicaps by promoting careful 
design and improved provision in both the refurbishment and development of 
buildings, public spaces, community facilities and transport network through 
the development control process and in the course of public service delivery.’ 
It is therefore considered that the proposed alteration is in accordance with 
this policy and has been appropriately designed to improve the accessibility 
into the building. 
 
Visual Impact of the Development 
 
The NPPF notes at paragraph 56 that: “The Government attaches great 
importance to the design of the built environment. Good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and 
should contribute positively to making places better for people.” Paragraph 64 
adds that:  Permission should be refused for development of poor design that 
fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality 
of an area and the way it functions.” 

 
In addition to the above the NPPF at paragraph 17 details 12 core planning 
principles, one of which states planning should always seek to secure a high 
quality design. Core Strategy policy CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’ states 
‘Proposals for development should respect and enhance the distinctive 
features of Rotherham. They should develop a strong sense of place with a 
high quality of public realm and well designed buildings within a clear 
framework of routes and spaces. Development proposals should be 
responsive to their context and be visually attractive as a result of good 
architecture and appropriate landscaping. Design should take all opportunities 
to improve the character and quality of an area and the way it functions’ which 
seeks to ensure that all development make a positive contribution to the 
environment by achieving an appropriate standard of design.’ 

Page 22



 
The proposal to alter the external appearance of the building has been 
revised during the consideration of this application such that both bay 
windows will be retained and the size of the window to the side of the original 
entrance and the width of the new entrance has been reduced. 
 
These revisions ensure that the original character of the building is preserved 
and that the front elevation of Cranworth Hotel by virtue of its design and 
materials would form an acceptable alteration. 
 
Core Strategy Policy CS21 ‘Landscaping’ states ‘Landscape works shall be 
appropriate to the scale of the development. Developers will be required to 
put in place effective landscape management mechanisms including long 
term landscape maintenance for the lifetime of the development’.  
 
As such, it is also considered that the proposed alteration to the car park area 
including the marking out of car parking spaces and the introduction of soft 
landscaping to the perimeter of the site, would improve the appearance of the 
site at this prominent location on Fitzwilliam Road. 
 
In summary, it is considered that the proposal forms an acceptable design 
that would not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the locality 
and conforms to Core Strategy policy CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’, UDP Policy 
T8 ‘Access’ and in line the guidance provided in the NPPF. 
 
Transportation Issues 
 
It is noted that the vehicular access to the site would remain as existing, via 
Cranworth Road and it is considered that the proposed alteration to the car 
park area would not result in a detrimental impact on the highway network or 
highway safety.  
 
It is also considered that the proposed location and quantum of cycle parking 
is appropriate to the scale and use of the site. 
 
Conclusion 
 
To conclude, the proposed development is considered to be acceptable and 
would retain the principal character and architectural features of the building 
and the overall site and would not have a detrimental impact on the visual 
amenity of the surroundings. 
 
The application does not constitute a change of use of the site and the Local 
Planning Authority cannot consider the merits or potential impact of a change 
of use of the building from a public house to retail purposes as it would be 
permitted development under current planning legislation. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the application for planning permission be 
granted subject to the following conditions. 
 

Page 23



Conditions 
 
01 
The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 
02 
The permission hereby granted shall relate to the area shown outlined in red 
on the approved site plan and the development shall only take place in 
accordance with the submitted details and specifications as shown on the 
approved plans (as set out below) except as shall be otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Location Plan (S1904/PL/03-01A) received 01 July 2014 
Site Plan (S1904/PL/03-02B) received 30 July 2014 
Proposed Floor Plan (S1904/PL/02-02B) received 30 July 2014 
Proposed Side and Rear Elevation (S1904/PL/02-06A) received 01 July 2014 
Proposed Front & Side Elevations (S1904/PL/02-05D) received 30 July 2014 
 
Reason 
To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
03 
Before the development is brought into use, that part of the site to be used by 
vehicles shall be constructed with either; 
a/ a permeable surface and associated water retention/collection drainage, or;  
b/ an impermeable surface with water collected and taken to a separately 
constructed water retention/discharge system within the site. 
The area shall thereafter be maintained in a working condition. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that surface water can adequately be drained and to encourage 
drivers to make use of the parking spaces and to ensure that the use of the 
land for this purpose will not give rise to the deposit of mud and other 
extraneous material on the public highway in the interests of the adequate 
drainage of the site and road safety. 
 
04 
Before the development is brought into use the car parking area shown on the 
approved plan shall be provided, marked out and thereafter maintained for car 
parking. 
 
Reason 
To ensure the provision of satisfactory garage/parking space and avoid the 
necessity for the parking of vehicles on the highway in the interests of road 
safety. 
 

Page 24



05 
Before the development is brought into use, a Landscape scheme, showing 
location and types of landscape treatment, shall be submitted for approval by 
the Local Planning Authority. The Landscape scheme should be prepared in 
accordance with RMBC Landscape Design Guide (April 2014) and shall be 
implemented in the next available planting season and maintained to ensure 
healthy establishment. Any plants dying, removed or destroyed within five 
years of planting shall be replaced the following planting season. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that there is a well laid out scheme of healthy trees and shrubs in 
the interests of amenity and in accordance with Core Strategy Policy CS21 
‘Landscape’. 
 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT  
 
During the determination of the application, the Local Planning Authority 
worked with the applicant to consider what amendments were necessary to 
make the scheme acceptable.  The applicant agreed to amend the scheme so 
that it was in accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



Application Number RB2014/0931 

Proposal and 
Location 

Erection of two/three storey building for use as workshops (use 
class B2 general  industry) and offices (use class B1(a)) with 
associated landscaping and parking at AMP Technology Centre, 
Advanced Manufacturing Park, Brunel Way, Waverley S60 5WG 
for the Homes and Communities Agency. 
 

Recommendation Grant subject to conditions  

 
 

 
 
Site Description & Location 
 
The site is located on a vacant area of land within the existing Advanced 
Manufacturing Park (AMP) and extends to approximately 0.6 hectares in total.  
To the north of the site is the existing Technology Centre and its associated 
car parking area, whilst to the east lies Highfield Spring and to the south are 
existing employment units (Dormer and Evolution). To the west is further land 
associated with the AMP. 
 
The site is characterised by a 2.5m high embankment which falls away 
towards the eastern boundary before flattening as it leads to Highfield Spring.  
The remainder of the site is relatively flat and comprises of a prepared 
development plot with access off Morse Way. 
 
 
 

Page 26



Background 
 
The site has an extensive history of coal mining and associated industrial 
activity dating back over 200 years.  In conjunction with coal mining taking 
place, a coke works and bio product plant was built in 1919 and operated until 
its closure in 1990.  Since then a number of planning applications have been 
submitted for the reclamation and remediation of the site.   
 
Following completion of the remediation works, a number of applications were 
submitted relating to the development of the Advanced Manufacturing Park. 
These are listed below: 
 

• RB2003/0045 - Outline application for development of advanced 
manufacturing park including business uses in classes B1 & B2 with 
related infrastructure and landscaping – Granted 06/04/2005 

 

• RB2005/0645 - Details of the erection of a three storey office and 
workshop building reserved by outline permission RB2003/0045– 
Granted 01/07/2005 (this building has since been constructed). 

 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
 
The proposed development falls within the description contained at paragraph 
10 (b) of Schedule 2 to the 2011 Regulations and meets the criteria set out in 
column 2 of the table in that Schedule. However the Council as the relevant 
Local Planning Authority, having taken into account the criteria set out in 
Schedule 3 to the 2011 Regulations, is of the opinion that the development 
would not be likely to have significant effects on the environment by virtue of 
factors such as its nature, size or location.  
 
Accordingly the authority has adopted the opinion that the development for 
which planning permission is sought is not EIA development as defined in the 
2011 Regulations. 
 
Proposal 
 
This is a full application for the erection of a two/three storey building for use 
as workshops (1,690sqm) and office space (762sqm) with associated parking 
and landscaping works.  The proposal will serve as the next phase of 
development at the Technology Centre, however will be physically detached 
from the existing two buildings. 
 
The building will have a rectangular footprint and extend down the existing 
embankment adjacent to Highfield Spring providing a three storey element in 
this location, reducing to two storeys as the building extends to the rear where 
the land levels even out.  The three storey element is shown to accommodate 
the office floorspace, whilst double height workshop space is to be provided to 
the rear with direct access from the car park.  Three pedestrian links will also 
be created from the building and car park to Highfield Spring. 
 

Page 27



Externally, the materials consist of silver/grey aluminium cladding panels to 
the main elevations with deep linear slot windows or full height glazing.  The 
main entrance to the building, on the north elevation, is fully glazed with a 
glazed skylight whilst the eastern elevation, adjacent Highfield Spring, will 
form the main feature and comprise of a double height recessed window and 
coloured vertical solar shading. 
 
The proposal also includes the provision of 75no. car parking spaces 
including 4no. disabled spaces located to the north of the building linking to 
the existing car park.  Cycle parking is adjacent to the main entrance with 
short and long term provision provided (short term through the means of 
Sheffield cycle hoops and long term by covered locker storage.) 
 
The following documents have been submitted in support of the application: 
 

• Supporting Statement including a Sequential and Impact Test   
This assesses the proposals against national guidance and local policy 
and concludes that no sequentially preferable sites were identified in 
relation to any of the centres examined.  Consideration of the impact 
also highlights that given the specific nature of the proposed 
development, the effect of the scheme on the centres identified is 
minimal and will not undermine their current or future vitality and 
viability; which in any event is more focussed on the provision of retail 
and retail services rather than office uses. 

 

• Design and Access Statement  
This provides an overview of the proposed development and 
demonstrates that the scale, design and external appearance reflects 
the characteristics of the site and surrounding area. 

 

• Transport Assessment  
This demonstrates that the development can accommodate the 
maximum permitted car and cycle parking as required by RMBC.  
Convenient access to the nearby bus stops on Highfield Spring has 
been provided and the Highfield Spring/Brunel Way roundabout layout 
can accommodate the vehicular flows associated with the proposed 
development as assessed in previous Transport Assessments with the 
development generated traffic included. 

 

• Travel Plan  
This demonstrates that the site is in a sustainable location and the use 
of sustainable modes of transport by staff and visitors has the potential 
to be high. It also identifies the appointment of a Travel Plan Co-
ordinator for the development who will be appointed once planning has 
been approved. Subsequent TPCs, who will act as point of contact for 
the individual units on the site, will be appointed by the Company. 

 
 
 
 

Page 28



• Ground Contamination Assessment  
This states that no significant sources of potential ground 
contamination have been identified on site that would pose a significant 
risk to the proposed development.  Elevated levels of ground gas (CH4 
/ CO2) have been identified in shallow boreholes on the site which 
could pose a potential risk to future buildings/site users. The risks need 
to be dealt with by means of appropriate ground gas protection 
measures in all new structures. 

 

• Noise Impact Statement  
This identifies that the highest level of noise will be attributable to 
external mechanised plant including breakout through any louvres 
internal plant areas.  During noise surveys undertaken in October 
2011, no noise was audible within the existing AMPTC.  Furthermore, 
commercial premises are proposed to be constructed off Highfield 
Spring which will act as a barrier between the proposal and the new 
community to the east. 

 

• BREEAM Pre-Assessment Report  
This attempts to assess the limited available information to give an 
indication of the likely BREEAM performance.  This exercise has 
resulted in a potential score of 62.09% for the Offices assessment and 
61.49% for the Industrial assessment, targeting the required Very Good 
rating. 

 

Development Plan Allocation and Policy 
 
On the 9th July 2014, the Council's Cabinet recommended that the Council 
adopt its Core Strategy. A report regarding adoption is to be considered at the 
full Council meeting of 10 September and upon approval the Core Strategy 
will be adopted and published. The weight to be given to the Core Strategy 
policies in the determination of planning applications is therefore significant as 
the Council considers the Core Strategy proposals satisfy the relevant 
requirements under paragraph 215 of the NPPF. 
 
The site is allocated for industrial and business purposes in the adopted UDP.  
The following Policies are considered to be relevant. 
  
UDP Policies: 
  

• EC3.1 ‘Land Identified for Industrial and Business Uses’ 
 
Core Strategy Policies: 
  

• CS9 ‘Transforming Rotherham’s Economy’ 

• CS14 ‘Accessible Places and Managing Demand for Travel’ 

• CS21 ‘Landscape’ 

• CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’ 
 
 

Page 29



Other Material Considerations 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: The NPPF came into effect on March 
27th 2012 and replaced all previous Government Planning Policy Guidance 
(PPGs) and most of the Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) that existed. It 
states that “Development that is sustainable should go ahead, without delay – 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development that is the basis for every 
plan, and every decision.  
 
The NPPF states that “due weight should be given to relevant policies in 
existing plans according to their degree of consistency with this framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the 
greater the weight that may be given).”  
 
The Unitary Development Plan policies referred to above are consistent with 
the NPPF and have been given due weight in the determination of this 
application. 
 

Publicity 
 
The proposal was advertised in the press, on site and via letters to adjacent 
occupants.  No representations have been received. 
 

Consultations 
 
Streetpride (Transportation and Highways) have reviewed the details 
contained within the Transportation Assessment and Travel Plan and confirm 
that no objections are raised to the proposals from a highway perspective 
subject to the imposition of conditions. 
 
Streetpride (Landscape) confirm that the proposed landscape layout is 
acceptable, however would require further technical specification detail to 
support the proposed which can be secured via the imposition of a condition. 
 
Streetpride (Ecology) confirms that ecological impact information has been 
provided but does not appear to adequately assess the final building extent 
and design.  No demonstration has been provided of the inclusion of any 
ecological mitigation and enhancement measures in the detailed design.  It is 
therefore recommended that a condition be imposed requiring the submission 
of a biodiversity mitigation and enhancement strategy and its implementation. 
 
Neighbourhoods (Environmental Health - Noise) have assessed the details 
set out in the submitted Noise Statement and confirm that no objections are 
raised subject to the imposition of a condition restricting the level of any noise 
generated by associated plant and machinery. 
 
Neighbourhoods (Environmental Health – Contaminated Land) acknowledges 
that the site has been characterised as a Gas Characteristic Situation 2 and 
as such recommend that conditions be imposed to ensure gas protection 
measures are carried out.   

Page 30



 
Sheffield City Council have reviewed the information submitted in support of 
the application and in particular the sequential test and confirm that the 
amount of office floor space proposed is relatively small at 762 square metres, 
so it is not likely to have any major impact on existing office centres.  Given 
this and the fact that they are currently not encouraging office development in 
District Centres in Sheffield, they raise no objection to the proposal. 
 
Appraisal 
 
Where an application is made to a local planning authority for planning 
permission…..In dealing with such an application the authority shall have 
regard to - 
  
(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application,  
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and  
(c) any other material considerations. - S. 70 (2) TCPA ‘90. 
 
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise - S.38 (6) PCPA 2004. 
 
Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states that: “At the heart of the National Planning 
Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, 
which should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making 
and decision-taking. For decision taking this means: 

• approving development proposals that accord with the development 
plan without delay; and 

• where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are 

out‑of‑date, granting permission unless: 

o any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the 
policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or 

o specific policies in this Framework indicate development should 
be restricted.” 

 
The main considerations in the determination of this application are: 

• Principle 

• Design, Scale and Visual Amenity 

• Landscape 

• Highway Safety 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



Principle 
 
The application site lies within an area allocated for Industrial and Business 
Use in the Unitary Development Plan. The proposed B2 workshop 
development is, therefore, acceptable in principle. The application also seeks 
permission for approximately 760sq.m of office floorspace within a B1(a) use 
outside of the town centre. 
 
While it is normally the case that such proposals would be assessed against 
the relevant policies of the saved Unitary Development Plan, in this instance, 
some UDP policies (including UDP Policy EC3.1) have been superseded by 
national planning guidance contained in the NPPF.  The principle of the 
current proposal must therefore be assessed against the provisions and tests 
contained within Paragraphs 24 and 26 of this document which require the 
Sequential approach to be applied together with an Impact Test.   
 
The Sequential Test aims to ensure that vacant sites and units in designated 
centres are considered for new town centre uses (as defined in the NPPF) 
before any other sites and units in edge-of-centre or out-of-centre locations. 
This is to ensure that the vitality and viability of the centres are protected and 
strengthened and that town centre uses are focused in these areas in the first 
instance. Only where the applicant/agent can demonstrate that no viable, 
vacant sites and /or units exist in the designated centres, will other areas be 
considered. 
 
In this regard paragraph 24 of the NPPF states that:  
 
“Local planning authorities should apply a sequential test to planning 
applications for main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre and 
are not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan. They should require 
applications for main town centre uses to be located in town centres, then in 
edge of centre locations and only if suitable sites are not available should out 
of centre sites be considered. When considering edge of centre and out of 
centre proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites that are well 
connected to the town centre. Applicants and local planning authorities should 
demonstrate flexibility on issues such as format and scale.” 
 
This is further emphasised Policy CS12 of the Core Strategy which states 
that:  
 
“The Sequential Approach - Proposals for town centre uses on the edge of or 
outside of designated centres will only be permitted where it can be 
demonstrated that: 

a. sites within and then on the edge of town, district or local centres 
have been assessed and it can be demonstrated that they are not 
available, suitable or viable for the proposed development….” 

 
 
 

Page 32



In order to undertake the sequential assessment, appropriate centres have to 
be identified based on the location of the application site. In this instance it 
has been agreed with the Council that it would be appropriate to analyse the 
following nearby centres: 
 

• Swallownest District Centre 
• Rotherham Town Centre 
• Woodhouse District Centre (within Sheffield) 
• Darnall District Centre (within Sheffield) 

 
It is these centres which form the basis of the sequential approach. As 
outlined in the emerging Core Strategy and the NPPF, any vacant premises 
identified in these centres have to be assessed in terms of their availability, 
suitability and viability. 
 
In the first instance the applicants have set out the rationale for why the 
proposed office use needs to be located at the AMP (alongside the additional 
workshop space), the scheme requirements, and quantum and quality of 
floorspace required.  These are examined below: 
 
Quantum of floorspace required 
 
The applicants have confirmed that the AMP to date is currently 'at capacity' 
and lacks the significant quantum of floorspace to attract new occupiers. A 
supporting statement from the AMP Technology Centre Manager has been 
submitted in support of the application which lists enquiries made for 
additional floorspace together with a synopsis of their type of business.  This 
demonstrates that there is a demand for both office and workshop floorspace 
at the Technology Centre with enquiries for additional office floorspace 
equating to approximately 1,200 sqm gross and approximately 836 sqm net. 
This shows the need to provide the amount of floorspace proposed by this 
development and as such cannot be disaggregated. 
 
Consequently the floorspace needs to be considered as a whole and so the 
sequential approach submitted by the applicant considers units of around 750 
sqm – 800 sqm to meet these requirements.  This methodology has been 
assessed and is considered to be appropriate in this instance. 
 
Quality of floorspace required 
 
In order to attract advanced manufacturers, high quality Grade A floorspace 
with requisite floor to ceiling heights, features such as climate control, modern 
glazing specification and required measures to allow the inclusion of 
broadband and other multimedia and networking tools will be required.  The 
current office accommodation at the Technology Centre provides all of these 
facilities, it is therefore accepted that any additional unit will need to be of a 
Grade A standard (or readily able to be converted into this standard) and offer 
the required super fast broadband. 
 
 

Page 33



Relationship between office and workshop space 
 
The applicants have confirmed that the majority of advanced manufacturers 
will require some combination of office and workshop space to operate and in 
practical terms it would be difficult to operate with the office floorspace located 
some distance from the workshop space. The need for practical linkages 
between the office floorspace and the workshop floorspace are therefore 
accepted. 
 
Sequential Test 
 
Having regard to the above rationale and the agreed ‘search area’ of 
Swallownest, Woodhouse and Darnall District Centres and Rotherham Town 
Centre for the sequential test, the applicants have identified only one property 
(8-10 Main Street in Rotherham town centre) that meets the scheme 
requirements.  Other premises (11 High Street, Swallownest, 34-38 Market 
Square, Woodhouse, premises on Main Road, Darnall and Darnall Liberal 
Club on Irvine Street, Darnall) have been discounted on the grounds  that the 
units would be too small in practical terms to accommodate the proposals, not 
available to purchase (to-let only), not Grade A quality floorspace or already 
sold to another purchaser. 
 
Having regard to the identified single site at 8-10 Main Street in Rotherham 
Town Centre, the property has a floorspace of approximately 835sqm and 
comprises accommodation on several floors.  It is owned by the Council and 
is being sold as a regeneration opportunity along with neighbouring properties 
along Main Street and Westgate. The total floorspace of the units combined is 
approximately 5,574 sqm. The Council’s Commercial Estates team has 
confirmed that they are selling the units as a whole (rather than selling them 
separately) with the idea of promoting a wider residential led mixed-use 
development.  On this basis, it is acknowledged that even though the site is 
available, it is unsuitable for the proposed development on the basis that the 
Council are only selling the wider site, which is far too large for the proposed 
development, and are seeking a residential-led mixed use scheme on the site, 
which is not consistent with the proposed scheme. 
 
Furthermore, the premises are not purpose built for modern office use and as 
such would not be able to offer the quality of the office floorspace required 
(Grade A). 
 
Having regard to the above, it is accepted that there are no available, suitable 
or viable sites for the proposed development within the identified town and 
district centres and on that basis, the proposed development to provide 
760sqm of B1(a) office accommodation in this location is in accordance with 
the provisions of Policy CS12 of the Core Strategy and Paragraph 24 of the 
NPPF. 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



Impact Assessment 
 
Core Strategy Policy CS12 states that:  
 
“Impact Assessment” 
Proposals for retail, leisure or office uses of 500 sq m gross or above, on the 
edge of or outside of designated centres, must be accompanied by an 
assessment of …… 
c. the impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public and 

private investment in centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and 
d. the impact of the proposal on the vitality and viability of centres, including 

local consumer choice and trade. 
Applicants should agree with the Local Planning Authority the scope of the 
evidence and analysis to be submitted to ensure that this is proportionate to 
the scale and nature of the proposal.” 
 
Having regard to these requirements, the applicant has analysed the identified 
town and district centres and is unaware of any comparable existing, 
committed or planned investment of similar floorspace to that which is 
proposed either from the public or private sector and as such no impact on 
these sectors are envisaged. 
 
Turning to the impact of the proposal on the vitality and viability of the 
identified centres, the applicants have visited the district centres which 
revealed that they contain no identifiable office floorspace and on this basis 
the impact of the proposed development is likely to be negligible in nature. 
Being much larger, Rotherham Town Centre contains a greater number and 
variety of units.  Whilst the centre features several vacant units, it appears 
popular with notable footfall along key routes along High Street, College 
Street and Effingham Street. Whilst the centre does contain some office 
floorspace, this tends not to be Grade A in quality and as such, purpose built 
Grade A office floorspace for advanced manufacturers is unlikely to impact on 
the vitality and viability of Rotherham Town Centre to any great degree. 
 
Having regard to the above and given the submitted information, the Council 
consider that there are no sequentially preferable sites for the proposed 
development and it would not have an impact on the vitality and viability of the 
town and district centres mentioned above, in accordance with the guidance 
in the NPPF and provisions of Policy CS12 of the Core Strategy. 
 
Design, Scale, Layout and Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
Paragraphs 56 and 57of the NPPF state that: 
 
“The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built 
environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is 
indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making 
places better for people... It is important to plan positively for the achievement 
of high quality and inclusive design for all development, including individual 
buildings, public and private spaces and wider area development schemes.” 

Page 35



 
In addition Policy CS28 of the Core Strategy aims to ensure that: “Design 
should take all opportunities to improve the character and quality of an area 
and the way it functions.” 
 
The area surrounding the application site consists of a mixture of industrial 
buildings varying in size from large scale units to the north west (Rolls Royce) 
to medium scale units to the south west and north (Dormer, Evolution and the 
Technology Centre).  All of these units have a similar external appearance in 
terms of their use of profiled metal cladding and roller shutter doors. 
 
The proposed building is located to the south of the existing technology centre 
on a vacant development plot.  Its siting on this plot is determined by the 
existence of the former opencast mining high wall.  The high wall represents 
the steep drop or excavation face in the open mining process and 
consequently has resulted in a no build area due to the unstable nature of the 
land. 
 
Taking this into account, the land available for development is significantly 
reduced and has resulted in the building being sited to the far south of the plot 
extending down the existing embankment towards Highfield Spring.  The 
overall length of the building extends to 70m, whilst the width is approximately 
26m.  The height of the proposed building is three storeys on Highfield Spring, 
extending to 14m in height from the Highfield Spring ground level, whilst the 
workshop facilities are double height, with an eaves height of 10m from 
ground level. 
 
Externally, the materials comprise silver/grey aluminium cladding panels to 
the main elevations with deep recessed linear slot windows or full height 
glazing.  The glazing has been designed horizontally to align with the 
horizontal cladding panels. The main entrance to the building is fully glazed 
with a glazed skylight, whilst the eastern elevation is the main feature to the 
building comprising of a double height recessed window and coloured vertical 
solar shading which have been designed to address the primary frontage onto 
Highfield Spring. 
 
The extension of the building down the embankment towards Highfield Spring 
will result in the building being a prominent feature when viewed from this 
vantage point.  It is acknowledged that existing buildings within the immediate 
vicinity are sited on the higher, flat development platform, however the 
existence of the high wall has sterilised much of the remaining developable 
land in this location and as such the proposed building is required to be sited 
in this location.  Units further along Highfield Spring, to the south west of the 
site, have a similar building line to that proposed, however due to a change in 
land levels the embankment reduces along this length and as such these 
buildings do not appear as prominent as that proposed.  Despite this, it is 
considered that the applicants have acknowledged that the building will be a 
prominent feature and have designed it to respect the existing context with 
respect to form and massing but have also provided an attractive frontage 
through the use of large areas of glazing and high quality materials.   

Page 36



 
Having regard to the above, it is considered that the proposed development 
will improve the appearance of this vacant site and whilst the building will 
project beyond the existing building line down the embankment towards 
Highfield Spring, the massing and external appearance is considered to be 
appropriate for this location due to its high standard of design and use of 
quality materials. It is therefore considered that the proposed development 
complies with Policy CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’ and paragraphs 56 and 57 of 
the NPPF. 
 
Landscape 
 
Policy CS21 ‘Landscapes,’ states: 
“new development will be required to safeguard and enhance the quality, 
character, distinctiveness and amenity value of the borough’s landscapes by 
ensuring that landscape works are appropriate to the scale of the 
development, and that developers will be required to put in place effective 
landscape management mechanisms including long term landscape 
maintenance for the lifetime of the development.” 
 
As set out in the preceding paragraphs, the proposed new building extends 
down the existing embankment towards Highfield Spring.  This area currently 
consists of grassed area with a formal hedgerow.  The area on the higher 
flattened development plot is self seeded rough grassland, providing little 
amenity value. 
 
The application is accompanied by a landscape plan which shows the 
removal of a section of the formal hedgerow on the embankment and the 
replacement planting of a turf verge, amenity grassland and wildflower grass 
seeding.  The removal of the formal hedgerow is regrettable, however the 
remaining land along the embankment is currently of poor landscape value 
and the implementation of the submitted landscape scheme would improve 
this area considerably.   
 
The Council’s Landscape Design Service has assessed the proposals and 
consider them to be acceptable subject to the submission of further technical 
specification detail which can be secured via a condition.  The submission and 
implementation of this will ensure that the landscaping in this location will be 
of a good standard and provide an attractive setting for the development. 
 
Having regard to the above and subject to the imposition of the recommended 
condition in respect of landscape retention and maintenance, it is considered 
that the proposals accords with Policy CS21 ‘Landscapes’. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



Highway Safety 
 
Paragraph 32 of the NPPF states that: 
 
“All developments that generate significant amounts of movement should be 
supported by a Transport Statement or Transport Assessment. Plans and 
decisions should take account of whether: 

• the opportunities for sustainable transport modes have been taken up 
depending on the nature and location of the site, to reduce the need 
for major transport infrastructure; 

• safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people; and 

• improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that cost 
effectively limit the significant impacts of the development. 

 
Development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds 
where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.” 
 
This is further emphasised in Core Strategy Policy CS14, which states that:  
 
“The Council will work with partners and stakeholders to focus transport 
investment on making places more accessible and on changing travel 
behaviour. Accessibility will be promoted through the proximity of people to 
employment, leisure, retail, health and public services by: 
 

A)  Locating new development in highly accessible locations such as town   
and district centres or on key bus corridors which are well served by a 
variety of modes of travel (but principally by public transport) and through 
supporting high density development near to public transport 
interchanges or near to relevant frequent public transport links……..’ 

D) Set thresholds where existing and future employers and institutions will 
need to adopt Travel Plans or Area Travel Plans as part of a programme 
of sustainable transport promotion. 

E) The use of maximum parking standards for non-residential developments 
aimed at reducing the number of car trips to and from them. 

F) Adopting car parking policies for vehicles and bicycles in accordance to 
national guidelines that support and complement public transport and the 
introduction of sustainable travel modes. 

G) The use of Transport Assessments for appropriate sized developments, 
taking into account current national guidance on the thresholds for the 
type of development(s) proposed……. 

 
In addition, the detailed layout of development should have regard to 
accessibility by private car, public transport, service vehicles, pedestrians and 
cyclists and people with disabilities.” 
 
The application site is considered to be in a sustainable location where there 
is good accessibility to public transport. To further improve sustainability three 
footpath links are to be provided from the site onto Highfield Spring where 
there are a number of bus stops.  
 

Page 38



Traffic data submitted in support of the application has indicated that trip 
generation for the proposed development (764 sq m B1, 1,690 sq m B2 with 
646 sq m shared uses) has been calculated using the nearby AMI training 
centre figures for the B1 office element and a TRICS analysis of the B2 units. 
This indicates a total of 21 No. and 17 No. trips in the AM and PM peak 
periods respectively for the B1 use and a total of 8 No. and 6 No. trips in the 
AM and PM peak periods respectively for the B2 workshops. Trips are 
expected to be distributed 50:50 in each direction along Highfield Spring. 
 
Having regard to this and given the low number of trips generated, the 
Council’s Transportation Unit have agreed that a junction modelling exercise 
is not warranted. Modelling has already been done for the nearby AMI 
Training Centre which included the entire build out of the AMP (including the 
current site) which concluded that the traffic impact is likely to be 
imperceptible. 
 
Turning to access and egress issues, vehicular access is by way of a barrier 
controlled car park access off Morse Way (northern end)  with a one way 
traffic flow system through the car park exiting onto Morse Way (southern 
end).  No alteration to this arrangement is proposed.  The proposal also 
includes the provision of 75 no. parking spaces (including 4 No. accessible) 
which conforms with the Council’s Maximum Parking Standards for 
developments of this nature. Secure cycle storage is to be provided adjacent 
the main entrance to the building and a Travel Plan has been produced which 
has a commitment to monitoring cycle use.   
 
In terms of pedestrian accessibility, it is proposed to create 3 new links from 
the proposed building and car park to Highfield Spring.  These links will 
comprise of concrete block paving and external steps down the existing 
embankment and will render the building more accessible from the public 
transport links along Highfield Spring. 
 
On the basis of the above, the assessment of the traffic impact of the 
development shows that the proposal will have little effect on local traffic. It is 
located in a sustainable location with good walking, cycling and public 
transport infrastructure and as such is unlikely to have a materially adverse 
impact in highway terms.  Accordingly, the development is considered to 
accord with CS14 and the NPPF. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Having regard to the above it is considered that the proposed development 
would represent an acceptable and appropriate form of development on this 
vacant sustainable site that would be in compliance with the requirements 
detailed within the UDP, Core Strategy and the NPPF.  As such, it is 
recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions. 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



Conditions  
 
General 
 
01 
The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 
02 
The permission hereby granted shall relate to the area shown outlined in red 
on the approved site plan and the development shall only take place in 
accordance with the submitted details and specifications as shown on the 
approved plans (as set out below)  
   

• Site Location Plan Dwg No. 00_001 Rev A 

• GA Lower Ground Floor Plan Dwg No. 00_002 Rev B 

• GA Ground Floor Plan Dwg No. 00_003 Rev B 

• GA First Floor Plan Dwg No. 00_004 Rev B 

• GA Roof Plan Dwg No. 00_005 Rev B 

• GA Elevations Sheet 1 of 2, Dwg No. 00_006 Rev B 

• GA Elevations Sheet 2 of 2, Dwg No. 00_007 Rev B 

• GA Sections Dwg No. 00_008 Rev A 

• Site Plan including Landscape Dwg No LL(90)001 Rev C 

• Proposed Drainage General Arrangement Dwg No. D/101 Rev P1 
 
Reason 
To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
03 
No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in 
that phase of the construction of the external surfaces of the development 
hereby permitted have been submitted or samples of the materials have been 
left on site, and the details/samples have been approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details/samples. 
   
Reason 
To ensure that appropriate materials are used in the construction of the 
development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy 
CS28 ‘Sustainable Design’ 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



Transportation 
 
04 
Before the development is brought into use, that part of the site to be used by 
vehicles shall be constructed with either; 
 a/ a permeable surface and associated water retention/collection 
drainage, or;  
 b/ an impermeable surface with water collected and taken to a 
separately  constructed water retention/discharge system within the site. 
The area shall thereafter be maintained in a working condition. 
 
Reason  
To ensure that surface water can adequately be drained and to encourage 
drivers to make use of the parking spaces and to ensure that the use of the 
land for this purpose will not give rise to the deposit of mud and other 
extraneous material on the public highway in the interests of the adequate 
drainage of the site and road safety. 
 
05 
Before the development is brought into use the car parking area shown on the 
submitted plan shall be provided, marked out and thereafter maintained for 
car parking. 
 
Reason 
To ensure the provision of satisfactory garage/parking space and avoid the 
necessity for the parking of vehicles on the highway in the interests of road 
safety. 
 
06 
Before the proposed development is brought into use, a Travel Plan shall 
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
plan shall include clear and unambiguous objectives, modal split targets 
together with a programme of implementation, monitoring, validation and 
regular review and improvement. The Local Planning Authority shall be 
informed of and give prior approval in writing to any subsequent 
improvements or modifications to the Travel Plan following submission of 
progress performance reports as time tabled in the monitoring programme. 
For further information please contact the Transportation Unit (01709) 
822186. 
 
Reason 
In order to promote sustainable transport choices. 
 
07 
The pedestrian accesses shall not exceed a gradient of 12% (1 in 12). 
 
Reason 
In the interests of pedestrian safety. 
 
 

Page 41



Landscape/Ecology 
 
08 
Prior to commencement of development, a detailed landscape scheme shall 
be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The 
landscape scheme shall be prepared to a minimum scale of 1:200 and shall 
clearly identify through supplementary drawings where necessary: 

-The extent of existing planting, including those trees or areas of 
vegetation that are to be retained, and those that it is proposed to remove. 
-The extent of any changes to existing ground levels, where these are 
proposed. 
-Any constraints in the form of existing or proposed site services, or 
visibility requirements. 
-Areas of structural and ornamental planting that are to be carried out.   
-The positions, design, materials and type of any boundary treatment to be 
erected. 
-A planting plan and schedule detailing the proposed species, siting, 
quality and size specification, and planting distances. 
-A written specification for ground preparation and soft landscape works. 
-The programme for implementation. 
-Written details of the responsibility for maintenance and a schedule of 
operations, including replacement planting, that will be carried out for a 
period of 5 years after completion of the planting scheme. 

 
The scheme shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved 
landscape scheme within a timescale agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that there is a well laid out scheme of healthy trees and shrubs in 
the interests of amenity and in accordance with UDP Policies ENV3 ‘Borough 
Landscape’, ENV3.2 ‘Minimising the Impact of Development’ and ENV3.4 
‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’. 
 
09 
Prior to the commencement of development a biodiversity mitigation and 
enhancement strategy, including a schedule for implementation, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
strategy should include all details recommended in the Waverley Ecological 
Checklist – Pre Work Assessment for AMP Technology Centre Building 3 
[updated document] and shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with 
the agreed statement before the development is brought into use. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that there is a well laid out scheme of healthy trees and shrubs in 
the interests of amenity and in accordance with UDP Policies ENV3 ‘Borough 
Landscape’, ENV3.2 ‘Minimising the Impact of Development’ and ENV3.4 
‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’. 
 
 

Page 42



Amenity Issues 
 
10 
Noise from the plant shall not exceed background noise levels at the nearest 
residential receptor (as quoted in the Noise Impact Statement, undertaken by 
WYG Planning and Environment). 
 
Reason 
In the interests of the amenity of the locality and in accordance with UDP 
Policy ENV3.7 ‘Control of Pollution’. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
11 
Gas protection to be incorporated into the building hereby approved shall 
include the following: 

 
a) Reinforced concrete cast insitu floor slab (suspended, non-

suspended or raft) with at least a lapped and taped  minimum 1200g 
membrane; 

b) a beam and block or pre cast floor slab with a lapped and taped 
minimum 2000g membrane;  

c) under floor venting or pressurisation in combination with either of (a) 
or (b) above depending on use; and 

d) All joints and penetrations should be sealed. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 
 
12 
A clean cover/capping layer comprising of a minimum of 600mm clean 
suitable growing medium, underlain by a lower geotextile separation layer (in 
order to prevent mixing of soils), shall be provided in all proposed areas of 
landscaping.   
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



13 
Any subsoils / topsoils required to be imported to site for soft landscaping 
works shall be tested at a rate and frequency to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority to ensure they are free from contamination.  If materials 
are imported to site the results of testing thereafter shall be presented to the 
Local Authority within one month of the date of their importation in the format 
of a Validation Report. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 
 
14 
A design sulphate classification of DS-4 and the responding aggressive 
chemical environment for concrete (ACEC) class of AC-5 shall be used for all 
sub surface concrete in the development, due to the elevated soluble sulphate 
content within the soils and made ground across the site. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 
 
15 
Prior to their installation, details of water supply pipes shall be specified and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to ensure resistance from 
chemical attack from residual contaminants remaining in the ground. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 
 
16 
In the event that during development works unexpected significant 
contamination is encountered at any stage of the process, the Local Planning 
Authority shall be notified in writing immediately.  Any requirements for 
remedial works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Works thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with 
an approved Method Statement to ensure the development will be suitable for 
use and that identified contamination will not present significant risks to 
human health or the environment.  
 

Page 44



Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 

 
17 
Following completion of any required remedial/ground preparation works a 
Verification Report should be forwarded to the Local Planning Authority for 
review and comment.  The Verification report shall include details of the 
remediation works and quality assurance certificates to show that the works 
have been carried out in full accordance with the approved methodology. 
Details of any post-remedial sampling and analysis to show the site has 
reached the required clean-up criteria shall be included in the verification 
report together with the necessary documentation detailing what waste 
materials have been removed from the site. The site shall not be brought into 
use until such time as all verification data has been approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled 
waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development 
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours 
and other offsite receptors. 
 
 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
The applicant and the Local Planning Authority engaged in pre application 
discussions to consider the development before the submission of the 
planning application.  The application was submitted on the basis of these 
discussions, or was amended to accord with them.  It was considered to be in 
accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Application Number RB2014/1038 

Proposal and 
Location 

Application to vary Condition 02 (approved plans) imposed by 
RB2013/0425 (erection of 2 No. wind turbines and associated 
cabinets) at Norwood Lock, Mansfield Road, Wales 

Recommendation Grant subject to conditions 

 

 
 
Site Description & Location 
 
The site of application is an area of recently cleared scrubland within the 
Green Belt between the M1 motorway and Norwood Locks. The land once 
formed a railway line linked to the former West Kiveton Colliery.  
 
The site is accessed via a formal private road to the Mansfield Road and a 
number of public footpaths come within close proximity to the site.  The 
surrounding land is made up of waste land and agricultural fields. The nearest 
property is Springfield Farm on Stockwell lane some 300m away across the 
M1 motorway. In addition there is a housing estate positioned some 700m to 
the north and a neighbour further down the canal route called The Boatman 
some 500m away. The applicant’s own dwelling and the recent ‘Fish House’ 
conversion (owned by applicant) are within 340m & 300m respectively.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



Background 
 
RB2013/0425 - Erection of 2 No. wind turbines and associated cabinets - 
GRANTED CONDITIONALLY 09/04/14. 
 
RB2014/0610 - Application to vary conditions 06 & 07 (noise sensitive time 
period) imposed by RB2013/0425 (erection of 2 No. wind turbines and 
associated cabinets). GRANTED CONDITIONALLY 03/07/14. 
 
Environmental Impact Assessment - A screening opinion was carried out to 
determine whether an Environmental Impact Assessment should accompany 
the application. The proposed development falls within the description 
contained in Paragraph 3 (i) of schedule 2 to the 2011 Regulations and meets 
the criteria set out in column 2 of the table in that Schedule.  However the 
Local Planning Authority, having taken into account the criteria set out in 
Schedule 3 to the 2011 Regulations, is of the opinion that the development 
would not be likely to have significant effects on the environment by virtue of 
factors such as its nature, size or location. Therefore an Environmental Impact 
Assessment was not required to accompany the application. 
 
 
Proposal 
 
The applicant seeks permission very Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of the 
original approval RB2013/0425. The changes in the approved plans involve 
the following changes to the turbines: 
 

• The replacement of a two bladed design with three blades.  

• A reduction in hub height from 32.2m to 22.6m.  

• A reduction in overall blade height from 48.4m to 34.8m.  
 
The reason for the reduction in the height of the turbine is the need to reduce 
potential radar interference with Doncaster Robin Hood Airport. This will allow 
Condition 9 of the original permission relating to radar interference to be 
addressed.  
 
 
Development Plan Allocation and Policy 
 
On the 9th July 2014, the Council's Cabinet recommended that the Council 
adopt its Core Strategy. A report regarding adoption is to be considered at the 
full Council meeting of 10 September and upon approval the Core Strategy 
will be adopted and published. The weight to be given to the Core Strategy 
policies in the determination of planning applications is therefore significant as 
the Council considers the Core Strategy proposals satisfy the relevant 
requirements under paragraph 215 of the NPPF. 
 
 
 

Page 47



The site is within the Green Belt and the following Policies are considered to 
be relevant:  
 
UDP: 
ENV2.2 ‘Interests outside Statutorily Protected Sites’ 
ENV3.7 ‘Control of Pollution’  
UTL3 ‘Environmental Impact of Service Installations’  
 
Core Strategy: 
CS4 Green Belt 
CS28 Sustainable Design 
CS30 Renewable Energy Generation 
 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
European Community Directive 2009 requires that 15% of the UK’s total 
energy use should be our energy should be supplied by renewable sources by 
2020. The Climate Change Act 2008 legally binds the UK to deliver a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions of 80% by 2050 and at least 34% by 
2020, compared with 1990 levels. The Energy Act 2008 places obligations on 
the electricity generating industry to provide electricity from renewable 
sources. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework: The NPPF came into effect on March 
27th 2012 and replaced all previous Government Planning Policy Guidance 
(PPGs) and most of the Planning Policy Statements (PPSs) that existed. It 
states that “Development that is sustainable should go ahead, without delay – 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development that is the basis for every 
plan, and every decision.  
 
The NPPF notes that for 12 months from the day of publication, decision-
takers may continue to give full weight to relevant policies adopted since 2004 
even if there is a limited degree of conflict with this Framework. The 
Rotherham Unitary Development Plan was adopted prior to this in June 1999. 
Under such circumstances the NPPF states that “due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency 
with this framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the 
Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).”  
 
The Unitary Development Plan policies referred to above are consistent with 
the NPPF and have been given due weight in the determination of this 
application. 
 
The National Planning Practice Guidance. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



Publicity 
 
The application has been advertised by way of site notice and letters to 
individual properties. No letters of representation have been received.  
 
 
Consultations 
 
Streetpride (Transportation and Highways Unit) –  The proposals are 
acceptable with regard to the possible impact on highways for which 
Rotherham MBC is the Highway Authority, although further details should be 
submitted regarding the route for construction traffic and confirmation that 
access improvements involving third party land are not required. 
 
Environmental Health – Raise no objections to the proposals. 
Robin Hood Airport – Comments awaited. 
 
 
Appraisal 
 
Where an application is made to a local planning authority for planning 
permission…..In dealing with such an application the authority shall have 
regard to - 
  
(a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application,  
(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, and  
(c) any other material considerations. - S. 70 (2) TCPA ‘90. 
 
If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise - S.38 (6) PCPA 2004. 
 
The application is to vary Condition 2 (approved plans) of the original 
permission for the 2 turbines in order to reduce the height of the turbines and 
to replace the two bladed design with three blades. As such the main issues 
for consideration are:  

 

• Principle of the development and the impact upon the openness of the 
Green Belt and the character of the landscape.  

• Residential amenity. 

• Ecological considerations. 

• Impact on highway network and M1 Motorway.  

• Impact upon Doncaster Airport Radar.  

• Other matters. 

• Whether any very special circumstances exist. 
 
Principle of the development and impact upon the openness of the Green Belt 
and the character of the landscape.  

Page 49



 
In terms of the principle of the development Core Strategy CS4 – Green Belt 
states: “Land within the Green Belt will be protected from inappropriate 
development as set out in national planning policy.”  
 
What constitutes acceptable development within the Green Belt is set out in 
the NPPF and paragraph 89 indicates that new buildings are inappropriate, 
though lists exceptions to this. Wind turbines are not included. Paragraph 91 
of the NPPF adds that: “When located in the Green Belt, elements of many 
renewable energy projects will comprise inappropriate development. In such 
cases developers will need to demonstrate very special circumstances if 
projects are to proceed. Such very special circumstances may include the 
wider environmental benefits associated with increased production of energy 
from renewable sources.” 
 
The proposal is inappropriate and thus by definition harmful to the Green Belt. 
The proposal impacts upon one purpose for establishing Green Belts; that of 
“assisting in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment”. As such, very 
special circumstances need to be demonstrated and these are discussed in 
more detail below. 
 
In terms of the impact on openness and the landscape Core Strategy Policy 
CS28 – ‘Sustainable Design’ states: “Proposals for development should 
respect and enhance the distinctive features of Rotherham. They should 
develop a strong sense of place with a high quality of public realm and well 
designed buildings within a clear framework of routes and spaces. 
Development proposals should be responsive to their context and be visually 
attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping.” 
 
The NPPF attaches great importance to the openness of the Green Belt. The 
amended plans will reduce the overall height of the turbines in terms of the 
hub height (by 9.6m) and their overall blade height (by 13.6m). In addition the 
two blade design is replaced by three blades. These changes will significantly 
reduce the visual impact of the turbines compared to those previously 
approved and as such the impact upon the openness of the Green Belt and 
on the landscape in general will be reduced.  
 
As noted above, the development represents inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt and has an impact, albeit it reduced, on the openness of the 
Green Belt in this location. As such, very special circumstances have to be 
demonstrated to overcome the harm caused.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



The overall National Planning Policy context in relation to wind turbines, as 
outlined above, is strongly supportive of the principle of wind turbines and the 
wider benefits of deploying renewable energy technologies in tackling climate 
change, subject to a number of considerations. The NPPF paragraph 98states 
that: “When determining planning applications, local planning authorities 
should: 

● not require applicants for energy development to demonstrate the 
overall need for renewable or low carbon energy and also recognise 
that even small-scale projects provide a valuable contribution to cutting 
greenhouse gas emissions; and 
● approve the application (unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise) if its impacts are (or can be made) acceptable.”  

 
The NPPF Planning Practice Guidance states that: “The Climate Change Act 
2008 establishes a legally binding target to reduce the UK’s greenhouse gas 
emissions by at least 80% in 2050 from1990 levels. To drive progress and set 
the UK on a pathway towards this target, the Act introduced a system of 
carbon budgets including a target that the annual equivalent of the carbon 
budget for the period including 2020 is at least 34% lower than 1990”. 
 
Having regard for the above, and in particular advice paragraph 98 of the 
NPPF, significant weight must be afforded to the production of energy from a 
renewable resource, the reduction in harmful emissions, and the wider 
environmental benefits in terms of combating climate change.  
 
The new turbines will generate some 1,120Mwh of renewable electricity a 
year and it is considered, as with the previous proposal, that the applicant has 
demonstrated ‘very special circumstances’ that overcomes the harm caused 
in the Green Belt.  
 
Residential amenity 
 
There are three considerations relating to residential amenity: 
(i) Noise. 
(ii) Visual amenity. 
(iii) Flicker/shadow. 
 
(i) Noise: 
 
The issue of noise was considered in the previous application RB2013-0425, 
and was not considered detrimental to neighbouring amenity subject to 
appropriate conditions.  The new turbines proposed have no greater noise 
impact than those approved. 
 
(ii) Visual amenity: 
 
The nearest property with no interest in the development would be 
approximately 300m from the proposed turbines, which are smaller than those 
previously approved, and separated by the visually intrusive M1 motorway. 
Other dwellings are over 500m away from the proposed turbines and whilst 

Page 51



the turbines will be visible they will not harm neighbouring outlook or appear 
overbearing. Having regard for this, the size of the turbines, the intervening 
hedgerows /trees, and the presence of the M1 in the vicinity, it is considered 
that it is unlikely that there would be any material adverse impact on the visual 
amenities of the nearest residential properties.  
 
(iii) Flicker/shadow: 
 
The original submitted report looked at shadow flicker and concludes that it is 
generally not a problem in the open as light outdoors is reflected from all 
directions. The issue of shadow flicker is therefore acceptable subject to an 
appropriately worded condition.  
 
Ecological Considerations 
 
The proposed turbines are smaller than previously approved and as such the 
impact upon ecology will be further reduced from the previously approved 
scheme.  
 
Impact on highway network and M1 Motorway 
 
The proposed turbines are smaller than those previously approved and it is 
considered that the impact on the highway network, including the M1, would 
also be reduced. 
 
Impact upon Doncaster Airport Radar  
 
No objections were received from Doncaster Airport in respect of the previous 
application, subject to the imposition of a suitably worded planning condition, 
and it is considered that, as the proposed turbines are smaller than those 
previously approved, this situation would not alter. 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
The amended scheme involving the reduced size of the turbines is considered 
acceptable and by way of siting, height, design and location would not 
adversely impact upon the landscape or ecology in this location. Nor given its 
small scale nature and siting some 300m from the nearest independent 
residential units would it unduly impact upon the amenities of nearby 
residential occupiers through increased noise disturbance or shadow flicker.  
 
Furthermore the amended wind turbines are not considered to cause 
distraction to the users of the nearby M1 motorway and subject to the 
appropriate attached condition will not interfere with the radar of the flight path 
of the nearby Doncaster Airport.  
. 
As such the proposal would accord with the adopted Unitary Development 
Plan and Core Strategy Policies and national and local guidance and it is 
recommended that permission be granted. 

Page 52



Conditions 
 
01 
The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration 
of three years from the date of the original permission (being 09/04/14). 
 
Reason 
In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
 
02 
The permission hereby granted shall relate to the area shown outlined in red 
on the approved site plan and the development shall only take place in 
accordance with the submitted details and specifications as shown on the 
approved plans (as set out below)  
(Amended Turbine Elevation received 30/07/2014)  
 
Reason 
To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt. 
 
03 
This permission shall be valid for 25 years (from 09/04/14) and at the end of 
that period, or within six months of the cessation of electricity generation by 
the turbines, or within six months following a permanent cessation of 
construction works prior to the turbines coming into operational use, 
whichever is the sooner, the turbines, foundations, and all associated 
structures approved shall be dismantled and removed from the site. The 
developer shall notify the Local Planning Authority in writing no later than five 
working days following cessation of power production. The site shall 
subsequently be restored in accordance with a scheme, the details of which 
shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority no 
later than three months following the cessation of power production, or 6 
months prior to the end of the 25 year period, whichever is the sooner. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of the character of the wider area and in accordance with 
Policy UTL3 ‘Environmental Impact of Service Installations’ of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 
 
04 
All electricity supply cables from the turbine shall be installed below ground. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of the visual amenity of the area and in accordance with Policy 
UTL3 ‘Environmental Impact of Service Installations’ of the Unitary 
Development Plan. 
 
 
05 
Prior to the commencement of development a biodiversity enhancement 

Page 53



statement, including a schedule for implementation, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall thereafter be 
implemented in accordance with the agreed statement before the 
development is brought into use. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that there is a well laid out scheme of healthy trees and shrubs in 
the interests of amenity and in accordance with UDP Policies ENV3 ‘Borough 
Landscape’, ENV3.2 ‘Minimising the Impact of Development’ and ENV3.4 
‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’. 
 
06 
Noise emissions from the site (as measured LA90, 10mins) in free-field 
conditions, at any dwelling in existence prior to the development, shall not 
exceed the greater of 35 dB(A) or 5 dB(A) above the background noise level 
(LA90,10mins) during the day and evening (07:00-23:00 hours) and shall not 
exceed the greater of 38 dB(A) or 5 dB(A) above the background noise level 
(LA90,10mins) during the night (23:00-07:00 hours) at all wind speeds up to 
10m/s. The noise emission values of the turbines shall include any tonal 
penalty if such is identified in accordance with the methodology set out in the 
ETSU-R-97 report. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises in 
accordance with ENV3.7 ‘Control of Pollution’ of the Unitary Development 
Plan. 
 
07 
Wind shear data shall be calculated to predict turbine noise characteristics at 
10m and at hub height for wind speeds of up to 10m/s, as recommended in 
the IOA Acoustics Bulletin: Prediction and Assessment of Wind Turbine 
Noise, and the data shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the turbines being constructed on site. 
 
Reason 
In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of nearby premises in 
accordance with ENV3.7 ‘Control of Pollution’ of the Unitary Development 
Plan. 
 
08 
No development shall take place until a scheme to secure the investigation 
and alleviation of any potential unwanted radar returns on the primary 
surveillance radar of Robin Hood Airport Doncaster Sheffield (RHADS) 
caused by the operation of the turbines has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with RHADS.   The 
scheme shall thereafter be implemented as approved.  The development shall 
thereafter be carried out and operated in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
 

Page 54



Reason  
In the interests of aviation safety. 
 
09 
The applicant shall provide written confirmation of the following details to the 
Ministry of Defence/Civil Aviation Authority prior to the commencement of 
development: 
 

-  Proposed date of the commencement of the development. 
 
Within 14 days of the commissioning of the final turbine, the applicant shall 
provide written confirmation of the following details to the Ministry of 
Defence/Civil Aviation Authority: 
 

- Date of completion of construction. 
- The height above ground level of the highest potential obstacle. 
- The position of that structure in latitude and longitude. 

 
Reason 
In the interests of air traffic safety. 
 
 
POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE STATEMENT 
 
The applicant and the Local Planning Authority engaged in pre application 
discussions to consider the development before the submission of the 
planning application.  The application was submitted on the basis of these 
discussions, or was amended to accord with them.  It was considered to be in 
accordance with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

 

Page 55



To the Chairman and Members of the 

PLANNING REGULATORY BOARD Date 18th September 2014  
 
Report of the Director of Planning and Regeneration Service 
 
 

ITEM NO. SUBJECT 
  

1 Ref:  RB2014/0785 
 
Erection of a Renewable Energy Park comprising of a Timber 
Resource Recovery Centre and Anaerobic Digestion facility at 
Land off Houghton Main Colliery Roundabout, Park Spring Road, 
Barnsley. 

  

  

2 DCLG Technical Consultation on Planning - response 
 

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 56 Agenda Item 8



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL PLANNING REGULATORY 

 BOARD 

 

PLANNING AND REGENERATION SERVICE REPORT TO COMMITTEE 

  18
TH

 SEPTEMBER 2014 

 

 

Item 1                                                                                                    Ref:  RB2014/0785 

Proposal and 
Location 

Erection of a Renewable Energy Park comprising of a Timber 
Resource Recovery Centre and Anaerobic Digestion facility 
at Land off Houghton Main Colliery Roundabout, Park Spring 
Road, Barnsley. 

Recommendation No objections 

 

 
Site Description & Location 
 
The application site lies on Park Spring Road near Great Houghton within Barnsley 
Borough, approximately 3.2km to the north of the Rotherham Boundary. 
 
The application site covers approximately 4.4ha and comprises of a vacant 
reclaimed site to the south of Park Spring Road.  The River Dearne lies to the west 
of the site and a curved flood defence bund to the north and west follows the 
alignment of a disused railway line.  There are existing industrial/commercial 
premises to the north and further along Park Spring Road. 
 
The site is relatively remote from any residential properties with the closest being a 
few scattered farms within Barnsley Borough.  The closest settlement within 
Rotherham is Brampton which lies approximately 3km to the south. 
 
 

Page 57



Background 
 
RMBC has been consulted on the above planning application submitted to Barnsley 
MBC.  This is a ‘courtesy consultation’ as required due to the close proximity of 
Rotherham Borough to the application site which is across the boundary in Barnsley.  
RMBC are invited to provide Barnsley MBC with comments on the application and 
the impact of the proposal on Rotherham in terms of such planning related issues as 
the environment, flooding, ecology and traffic within Rotherham. 
 
Proposal 
 
The application proposes to develop a renewable energy park comprising of a 
150,000 tonnes per annum Timber Resource Recovery Centre and a 60,000 tonnes 
per annum Anaerobic Digestion Facility.  The development of the site will create two 
distinct but compatible energy generation facilities with the potential to generate 23 
megawatts of electricity and to provide direct heat and/or electricity to appropriate off 
takers in the local area. 
 
The Anaerobic Digestion Facility will be located on the northern and eastern part of 
the site and will receive 60,000 tonnes per annum of material (from commercial and 
municipal food waste) to generate an estimated 3mw of electrical energy.  The 
biomethane fuel will be derived via anaerobic digestion. 
 
The Timber Resource Recovery Centre will be sited on the southern and western 
portion of the site and will receive 150,000 tonnes per annum of biomass which may 
include waste timber derived primarily from the commercial and industrial sectors 
and will subject it to a process that recovers clean ferrous and non-ferrous material 
for recycling and generates approximately 20mw of renewable electrical power.  
 
The constituent individual buildings and their sizes are listed below: 

 Length (m) Width (m) Height (m) 

TRRC    

Reception Hall 65 45 11.4 

Process Bldg 102 30 30 

Stack 2.5 diameter 45 

Turbine Hall 25.7 18 17.9 

Offices/workshop 12.3 18 17.9 

Condensors 53.7 13.4 23 

Ash Storage Silos 6.6 diameter 14.8 

Fire Water Tank 13 diameter 7.0 

Fuel Oil Storage 
Tank 

3 2.4 2.5 

Standby 
Generator 

13.2 
 

3.2 2 

Fire Water 
Pumps Enclosure 

4 3 2.5 

AD    

Process Bldg 42 28 12.5 

Admin/Welfare n/a (within process building) 

Filters 12.2 7.2 5 

Storage Tanks 21.1 diameter 15.7 

Page 58



Buffer Tanks 10.1 diameter 16 

Gas Holder 8 diameter 7.8 

CHP Engines 12.2 2.5 3 

Oil Store 12.2 2.5 3 

Flare 1 diameter 9 

Weighbridge 
Kiosk 

1.8 1.2 2.5 

 
The hours of operation of the facility are 24 hours with deliveries between 07.00 and 
19.00 hours Monday to Friday and 07.00 and 13.00 hours on Saturdays with no 
deliveries on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
The facilities will be accessed via an existing spur off the Houghton Main Colliery 
Roundabout, Park Spring Road with daily Traffic Movements summarised as follows: 
 

 AD Heavy Vehicle Traffic 

 IN OUT TOTAL 

AM (Peak) 4 3 7 

PM (Peak) 0 2 2 

Daily 35 35 71 

 TRRC Heavy Vehicle Traffic 

 IN OUT TOTAL 

AM (Peak) 3 3 6 

PM (Peak) 1 1 2 

Daily 30 30 60 

 
 
The total number of employees at the site will be 30 with an estimated 200 jobs 
during the peak of construction activities. 
 
Consultations 
 
Streetpride (Highways and Transportation) do not envisage any traffic impact within 
Rotherham. 
 
Streetpride (Ecologist) does not anticipate any significant ecological impact will result 
on sites/species in Rotherham but notes that the site is within the Dearne Valley 
Nature Improvement Area which also covers some of RMBC and DMBC. 
 
Appraisal 
 
The main issues with the proposal in terms of impacts on Rotherham would include 
the impact on traffic levels within the Borough and the impact on the general 
environment and its residents. 
 
The nearest residential properties within the administrative boundary of Rotherham 
are over 3km from the application site to the south.  It is unlikely given the distance 
to the local authority boundary and intervening natural/landscape features it is 
unlikely that the site and the buildings in question would be highly visible from 
Rotherham. 
 

Page 59



In respect of the proposed developments impact on Rotherham’s highways it is 
noted that there are three roundabouts between the site and the Rotherham 
boundary (all of which lie within Barnsley). It is therefore considered that the 
proposed development, given the traffic movements quoted and distance to 
Rotherham, is unlikely to have a material adverse impact on the Borough’s roads. 
 
In addition to the above there are no ecological constraints in respect of this 
application and it is not considered that the development will have a negative impact 
on ecologically important sites and features in Rotherham. Nevertheless it is 
considered that a comment should be included that the site is within the Dearne 
Valley Nature Improvement Area which also covers some of RMBC and DMBC. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Having regard to the above, it is considered that the impact of the proposed 
development on Rotherham will be minimal given the location of the site, land levels 
and the distance from residential properties within Rotherham.  As such it is 
considered that RMBC should raise no objections to the proposals. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That Barnsley MBC be informed that the Council has no objections to the proposals 
subject to a comment that the proposed development lies within the Dearne Valley 
Nature Improvement Area which also covers some of Rotherham MBC and 
Doncaster MBC.  
 
 
 
Item 2 

Title: DCLG Technical Consultation on Planning - response 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
That members consider the proposed response to DCLG consultation 
“Technical Consultation on Planning” 
 
Proposals and Details 
 
The Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has published an 
extensive consultation document covering numerous aspects of the planning system 
which was received by the Authority for comment in August 2104. The consultation 
document recommends further deregulation within the planning system and some of 
the proposals are intended to make permanent a number of temporary arrangements 
which were introduced in May 2013. The deadline for comments to be received by 
the DCLG is 26 September 2014 and due to this deadline and the timing of meetings 
it has not been possible to report this document via the Improving Places Board. 
 
 
 

Page 60



The consultation document covers six different subject areas in 98 pages. Therefore, 
this report provides only a brief summary of the main elements and an initial 
assessment of their implications. The six elements in the consultation are:- 
 
FSpeeding up Neighbourhood Planning. 
FExpansion of permitted development rights. 
FImprovements to the use of planning conditions. 
FImproved engagement with statutory consultees. 
FRaising the screening thresholds for environmental impact assessments. 
FWidening the range of consents within the Development Consent Orders which 
nationally significant infrastructure works are enabled. 
 
 
Section 1: Neighbourhood Planning 
 
This section of the consultation is about proposed regulatory changes to the 
neighbourhood planning system which were introduced via the Localism Act 2011. 
The most significant aspect is a proposal to introduce a 70 day time limit within which 
local planning authorities must take decisions on neighbourhood plans. It also seeks 
views on changes to the pre-submission consultation and publicity process for 
neighbourhood plans and neighbourhood development orders, and the 
documentation that must accompany a neighbourhood plan when submitted to a 
local planning authority. 
 
Response:  
 
Although Rotherham has not yet received an application to designate a 
neighbourhood plan the timescale for decision making would be difficult to comply 
with, if it is to involve a meaningful period of public consultation.  Whilst we recognise 
the need for a speedy and responsive planning system, this should not be at the 
expense of due process in such important matters. 
 
Section 2: Reducing Planning Regulations 
 
The temporary permitted development rights, allowing offices to be converted to 
homes and householders to build larger extensions without the need for planning 
permission, is to be made permanent.  
 
There are also proposals to allow more changes on our high street without having to 
go through the planning process and specific proposals which include the widening 
of permitted development rights to allow change of use from B1 light industrial units, 
B8 warehouses and storage units, offices and some other uses into residential to 
increase the housing supply.  
 
A further proposal involves a requirement for premises to be used as a betting shop 
or by a pay day loans company to secure planning permission for such a change of 
use. Currently premises with an A2 Use Class can become a betting shop or pay day 
loan shop without the need for planning permission.  
 
 
 

Page 61



Response:  
 
The proposal which is likely to have most implications locally is to make currently 
time-limited permitted development (PD) rights for the extension and alteration of 
most residential premises permanent.  Members will be aware that in May 2013 
temporary increased limits were introduced to allow for single storey rear extensions 
on dwelling houses via a neighbour notification process rather than a planning 
application. Previous comments on the temporary introduction of this should be 
reiterated i.e. that a core principle of the NPPF is to ensure good design and a good 
standard of amenity and that allowing larger home extensions allows home owners 
to by pass these requirements.   
 
 
We commented that many modern housing estates are built on small plots often very 
close to or on the boundary with the neighbouring property and therefore an 8m 
extension would have a huge impact on the neighbour’s amenity. In terraced 
properties where residents either side could take advantage of the PD the impact on 
the middle resident would be significant, effectively creating a tunneling effect.  
Changes in ground levels (with the neighbour at a lower level) would exacerbate the 
problem further cause disamenity, loss of light and loss of privacy.  
 
Our experience so far is that if we have been notified of a larger home extension and 
then the neighbour has objected we have refused the extension if it is felt that it 
would cause problems of overshadowing or over development of the property 
however this has not yet been tested at appeal to ascertain if the Planning 
Inspectorate would support our view. 
 
The changes to the PD for larger home extensions is therefore unnecessary – the 
majority of householder applications are approved but this is following the 
neighbours right to comment, consideration of the issues, any necessary mitigation 
or amendments made to result in an acceptable development.  
 
We cannot see that the changes proposed will have a significant impact on the 
economy as relaxing planning rules will not improve the affordability of extending 
homes – an owner is not going to decide not to extend his property purely because 
of the requirement for planning permission, it is more likely because he/she cannot 
afford to build the extension in the first place. 

Should the changes be introduced then it is essential, that the Local Planning 
Authority is notified and evidence of compliance submitted.  
 
Members have reiterated the issue in relation to the transparent process of a 
planning application which includes the ability of neighbours to lodge concerns and 
for these to be mitigated through the process and that taking away this process goes 
against localism and locally made decisions.  
 
Councils still need to determine these prior notifications, in many instances with no 
fee and with reduced timescales for decision making. 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



We have had 152 of these types of applications and if we assume that they would 
have all been submitted as planning applications, the fee alone would have been 
£26,144 notwithstanding the officer time that it has taken to deal with these prior 
notifications. 
 
Conversion of industrial / office premises to residential  

Introducing new rights to allow homes to be created in buildings currently used for 
light industry, warehousing, launderettes, casinos, nightclubs and amusement 
arcades would result in the loss of valuable space for businesses and employment 
and could lead to the creation of poor quality housing. 

 

Suitable locations for locally assessed need for residential and employment land 
have been established through the local plan process and this proposed change 
would undermine this work which has been subject to many stages of public 
consultation and will therefore remove any form of control. Issues in relation to the 
location of residential units in employment areas may cause problems of 
substandard housing, issues for the residents of noise and traffic, parking for 
adjacent industrial plots and issues for any expansion of industrial premises in the 
locality. It could stymie further industrial development.  

As the value of residential land is higher than industrial land, landowner decisions 
are likely to be made on financial grounds rather than best use of land which is 
historically the Local Planning Authority’s role and is at odds with plan lead system 
approach. 

High Street  

Broadening the definition of “shops” to include many uses currently classed as 
financial and professional services. This would allow shops to convert to such as 
estate agents without the need for a planning application. 

Response: 

This could lead to a permanent loss of valuable shops and businesses in our high 
streets and therefore have a further impact on the work to improve the viability and 
vitality of our town centre’s. 

 
Section 3: Improving the Use of Planning Conditions 
 
The proposals in this suggest amendments to ensure that planning conditions are 
appropriate and do not act as barrier to achieving timely development.  
 
Developers would be able to use a new 'deemed discharge' measure if councils do 
not respond to their requests to sign off planning conditions within a 'reasonable 
time', under measures put out for consultation and failure to do so will result in a 
deemed discharge. 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



The implications of these proposals need to be fully assessed. An initial view is that 
the proposals may be justified in certain circumstances, but fail to recognise that 
there is also a responsibility on the part of applicants to ensure that information also 
needs to be provided to the local planning authority in a timely manner to ensure that 
planning applications can be registered without delay and that subsequent discharge 
of conditions is also a two way process. For instance the consultation does not 
acknowledge that some pre-commencement conditions are imposed by planning 
authorities because the details have not been provided by the applicant or their 
agent. 
 
In relation to resolving issues through the process rather than via condition, our 
Authority offers an accessible pre-application service to resolve issues and is in the  
top quartile for speed of determining planning applications. We have good working 
relationship with developers and only use pre-commencement conditions if 
absolutely necessary to control an issue where information cannot be provided up 
front by the developer. It should be recognised that often the use of conditions is 
directly related to lack of information provided by developers and often used as a 
way of getting an in principle agreement with further information to be provided.  This 
can speed up the decision making process rather than hinder it. 
 
This proposal is therefore viewed as a broad brush approach which is not required 
for planning authorities who provide an efficient service 
 
Section 4: Planning Application Process Improvements 
 
These proposals are aimed at streamlining the consultation process, particularly with 
statutory consultees, by changing the thresholds for such consultations and 
introducing a more proportionate approach. Changes are also suggested to the 
referral of heritage matters to the Secretary of State. Other proposals include a 
requirement for local planning authorities to ensure that railway infrastructure 
managers are notified of all planning applications where development is proposed 
near a railway.  
 
Response: 
The implications of these proposals locally are considered to be minimal. 
 
 
Section 5: Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Thresholds 
 
The consultation seeks views on proposals to raise thresholds for screening projects 
which may require an environmental impact assessment. The result of the changes 
will potentially reduce the number of projects which will need to be screened and in 
turn those which are likely to require an EIA.  
 
Response: 
 
The EIA process is something that has become quite onerous over the last few years 
with  a significant number of applications needing to be screened but very few 
actually being classed as EIA development.  We would welcome a raising of 
thresholds for screening and a more proportionate approach. 
 

Page 64



 
Section 6: Improving the Nationally Significant Infrastructure Regime 
 
Through the Planning Act 2008, a new regime for allowing certain types of nationally 
significant infrastructure was established. These included major energy projects, 
railways, ports, major roads, airports, water and waste projects. The aim of the 
proposals is to simplify and speed up planning consent for such projects by reducing 
the number of separate applications and permits and enabling faster decisions while 
ensuring consultation with communities and other interested parties.  
 
Response:  
 
No local impact 
 
Summary 
 
The proposals to further undermine the planning process are unnecessary – the 
majority of householder applications are approved, we offer free pre-application 
advise to residents, and an application gives the opportunity for neighbours to raise 
comment, plans to be amended and for negotiation to result in the best scheme to be 
carried out. It does not require a neighbour to formally object before an assessment 
of the effect on the development on them and their property can be carried out. The 
removal of the role of the Local Planning Authority in this process may lead to 
tensions and concerns between residents, neighbours and communities. 
 
As prior notifications still require checks to be carried out and neighbour notifications 
to be issued there is a no recoverable cost to the Council thereby further stretching 
already reduced resources and impacting on the Councils capacity to deliver an 
efficient planning service.   
 
As the chair of Planning Board has been contacted by Sefton Council in relation to 
the consultation Boards consideration of the response is requested prior to 
submission. 
  

 

Page 65


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Regulatory Board held on 28th August, 2014
	6 Deferments/Site Visits (information attached)
	7 Development Proposals
	8 Report of the Director of Planning and Regeneration Service

